Ceska posta 2017 Annual Report
Ceska posta

Contents

I FOTCWOTA oo e et et et ettt e e ettt e et e e e b bt h et b b ats e st s D

2 Report of the SUPErvISOry BOAI .. ..cvovioiiiicciiciieieir s s sesa st s see v ecne
3 K@Y @VENLS Of 201 7 it iiiiei it cciit e e ettt e it st b e e etdb e fatats e st bbb e e et b e £ e et kb e s £rb i beebsentrge e aantrraearatrreeasree D
4 The year 2017 in nuMDbETs and factS.........iiiiiiiiiiii ettt 7
I Oe} 1T o 11 g L[ O OSSP 8
5.1 MisSion and Strate@iC OAIS . .....oii it e e s 8
5.2 Legal status 0f the ENEEIPIISE ....oviciiiiii it e 8
5.3 Enterprise administration and management..............ccoovoiiiiinnnien e 8
6 Regulatory framework fOr POStal SEIVICES ... .. ittt neea 9
6.1 Selected obligations of a postal license holder .......cc..coocovivveiiiiciiinricre e 10
T REPOIT ON ACHVIIIES .. uie et eeiee et e ettt e et ettt ate e et e e ettt e et e e eae e ettt ame e e ets s eensbe e s en e e eabseeanaeeeareeas 10

8 Branch or division abroad
9 Information 0N R&D BCHVIIIES ......ociiiviii ittt a et s ae e vate e s s s iesee e e s e eeiananenns | B
10 Information on environmeENtal ProTECTOM. ... .icii ittt eet e e e e e e e e e er e et eenee e 14
11 Information on 1abour TeIAtIONS ..ottt e 14

12 Protecting CP, its employees and CUSTOMETS ........c.covovivivveimeirereeseseee oo ressenssosssessssessosissessresienirernres 1 5

12.1 RISK MBNAZEIMENL.c..tretireii ittt ettt see s ste e ee st sm s s e tene e e mnes 15
12.2 S BCUTILY ettt ettt ettt eadeere £ ereneens 16
12.3 0o 103 1T o 1ot PO O 15
12.4 INEEINAT UATL. ... et 15
12.5 L0 1 1o TTTa R oS3 Yo o TSRO SRRU PR 15
12.6 Office of the Ombudsperson for EMployees .....oco e et 16

-

13 Provision of information pursuant to Act No. 106/1999 Coll. on freedom of access to information ....... 16

14 SUDSEQUENT EVENITS ...oiii ittt ettt ee ettt e e se e s ae e s es st se s et e e 4 e s s s ab et £2 8o rs et eneeeneeeeeneees 18

]5 Financial section — Auditor's Reports, standalone financial statements (statements, notes); consolidated
financial StatemMeENTS (SLATEMENLS, THOTES)...ooiiueueeeiiee e e et e e e e eee s eene e e e eae s sverae e s se vt e as et erestaemtnee e aen 19
15.1 Report of the Independent Auditor on the Standalone financial statement ...................... 20
15.2 Standalone financial SLAIEMENT ........c.ocoiii it v e e e e s 24
15.3 Consolidated Financial Statements including Report of the Independent Auditor........... 54

Ceskd posty, .p.. registerad oftice: Politickyeh vezid 99974, 225 99 Praha 1, Bus. Rep. No.: 471 14 983 Page 2/85

Entered in the Commereial Register maintained by the Municipul Court i Prague, Entry No, A7565 W ceskaposta. ez



Ceska posta 2017 Annual Report
Ceska poita

1 Foreword

The year 2017 was very important for Cesk4 posta in many respects, in particular with regard to its direction
and ensuring its future. One of the key moments was the selection of a partner for co-operation on banking
and insurance services for the next ten vears. The best offer was submitted by the CSOB group and Ceska
posta subsequently concluded a contract with it. Ceska posta and the CSOB group thereby extended co-
operation lasting a quarter of a century under the Postovni spofiteina brand. The new contract led to a
marked increase in Ceska podia’s revenues and growth in profitability, investment by the CSOB group
amounting to hundreds of millions of koruna and an increase in the number of specialised counters at post
offices. Co-operation with the CSOB group puts the concept for comprehensive and available financial
services under one roof.

In 2017, Ceska posta also continued to transfer branches to contractual partners as a part of the Posta Partner
project. Last year alone, Ceska poita opened 189 Partner post offices, which are a full alternative to Ceska
posta branches. In municipalities where a Partner post office is operating, the citizens are satisfied, which
was confirmed, for example, by an independent research drafted last year by the Association of Small and
Medium-Sized Enterprises and Crafts. At the end of 2017, 428 partners were offering citizens their services.

Ceska posta has been operating the Data Box Information System for ten years. Last year, Ceska posta issued
a tender for a subcontractor. It was won by O2 [T Services and | view the results of the tender very
positively. Thanks to the tender we obtained better conditions for the government and saved CZK 200
million over the 5 vears for which the contract is concluded.

Ceska posta held its previous postal licence unti! the end of 2017 and was interested in continuing to provide
postal services. A new licence was granted to Ceska posta by the Board of the Czech Telecommunication
Office in the middle of December, for the period 2018-2022. In future years we will therefore provide the
government with a universal service that includes. for example, the duty o operate a network of 3,200 post
offices and make deliveries in accordance wijth set parameters.

Ceska podta’s most valuable assets are its employees. Therefore, we focused on improving their working
conditions last vear. In the last three years we have provided CZK 2.5 bn for increases in income for
employees with a tariff salary and the average annual increase of salaries was 5%. In addition 1o this, over
and above the agreed framework Ceska posta paid an extraordinary bonus totalling CZK 200 million from
the payment of compensation for costs of the universal service in 2013 and 2014,

Last year Cesk4 poita made a before-tax profit of CZK 91 million. It is approximately CZK 100 million less
than in previous years. The largest negative influence on this result was due to the year-on-year fall in
compensation for the universal service from CZK 600 million to CZK 500 million, the payment of the
extraordinary bonus in accordance with the government order for compensation for the costs of the universal
service for 2013 and 2014 and the continuing fall in traditional postal services, in particular domestic mail
and money orders. Higher revenues from parcels, international mail, higher revenues from co-operation with
the CSOB group and also economy measures affecting operating costs, i.e. the transition to IP telephony, had
a positive influence on the results.

In conclusion, T would like to mention one activity that provides me with great joy and whose benefit cannot
be expressed in numbers. The Ceska posta Foundation was established at the end of 2016. Its most important
function is support for postal workers in need. Last year, employees coniributed more than CZK 650
thousand and the administrative board handed out more than CZK 400 thousand to fourteen colleagues who
found themselves in very unfavourable circumstances. Such solidarity is not common at all and it makes me
even prouder of Ceska poita employees.

. /
Vit Bukvic, charged with managing Ceska posta, s.p. ;
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2 Report of the Supervisory Board

In 2017, the Ceska posta Supervisory Board held 11 ordinary meetings and 1 extraordinary meeting. As in
previous years, it paid careful attention to a broad range of company activities and issues, and fulfilled its
mission as required by the applicable laws,

Aside from long-term, systematic oversight of the activities of this state enterprise, the Supervisory Board
devoted careful attention to both the evaluation and meeting of operating result targets, as well as business
strategy implementation. Individual issues were discussed in detail by the Board’s expert committees. The
Supervisory Board focused, among other things, on Ceska posta's investment undertakings and the scope
and quality of its services with the aim of bolstering the Company’s position in a highly competitive market.
The Supervisory Board considered it important to find new ways to address the employee remuneration
system currently in place. It regularly monitored and evaluated operating result and its compliance with the
approved financial plan.

Jn 2017, the Supervisory Board also played an active role in selecting a suitable partner for the provision of
banking and insurance services. This selection process culminated in the June signing of a ten-vear
cooperation agreement that entered into force on 1 January 2018. Rigorous negotiations led 10 a solution
enabling Ceska posta to optimize the utilization of its well-trained staff, existing infrastructure and branch
network. This will serve to ensure the Company garners an ever higher revenue share of the retail market for
banking and insurance services.

The Supervisory Board performed a rigorous review of the standalone and consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 prepared in compliance with Czech accounting standards. ]t also
reviewed the Auditor’s Reports prepared by auditor Emst & Young Audit, s.r.o.. which were issued “without
qualification”. It discussed the Ceska posta Annual Report for 2017 and recommended that the Founder
approve the Annual Report, which includes the financial statements and Auditor's Reports. The Supervisory
Board recommended that tlie Founder decide on the distribution of profit/loss for the year 2017 as proposed
by Company managemen

Ja ares

Supervisory Board Chairman, Ceska pota, s.p.
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3 Key events of 2017

January 2017

Advisory firm PricewaterhouseCoopers Ceska republika, 5.r.0. assessed the risk management function
at Ceska posta at the 2016 year-end, and stated in its final report that the risk management process in
place at Ceska posta is transparent and achieves a high degree of compliance with key requirements of
internationally recognized frameworks, standards and best practices. The fact that Ceska po¥ta has a
Risk Management Committee, which is not yet standard practice in the Czech Republic, was just one of
the positive review findings.

February 2017

On 28 February, Ceska posta representatives took part in discussions with the chairman of the Union of
Towns and Municipalities of the CR. Frantidek Lukl, and vice-chairman Pavel Drahovzal. The
discussion of issues led to the further operational streamlining and simplification of individual Posta
Partners. The parties also agreed on a method of conveying information on the progress of the Podta
Partner project and on any changes, e.g. in Posta Partner contractual operators.

March 2017

The Czech Government decided to terminate and replace its compensation fund. and enjoined the Czech
Ministry of Industry and Trade to collaborate with the Czech Ministry of the Interior to draft a bill
amending the Postal Services Act, abolishing the fund and addressing the financing of the net expenses
that place an unfair financial burden on Ceska pota. Specifically, they agreed on the coverage of Ceska
posta’s net expenses for the years 2013 and 20)4 in a total amount of CZK 800 million. Payment is to
be effected in three phases: CZK 200 million in 2018, CZK 300 million in 2019 and the remaining CZK
300 million in 2020.

April 2017

As of | April, the Ceska posta Customer Card also serves as a “Recipient [D™. The new functionality of
the Customer Card replaces the existing form of Recipient D that the holder presents to Ceska posta to
prove authorization to accept consignments and money orders for the addressee. Holders of Customer
Cards for natural persons (individuals) will be able more easily to pick up post for any other person who
has provided advance authorization.

Cesk4 posta was once again a partner in the | 1th annual Tent Against Melanoma in all three of the
cities in which the event is held. The event took place on 18-19 April 2017 in Prague, continuing on 24
April in Brno and 25 April in Ostrava.

One of the most important international events held at CP was the Remuneration Forum, a meeting of
representatives of European postal services operators from the PostEurop Trade Association, which
dealt with terminal charges and compensation for deliveries of international parcels.

We enlisted the cooperation of contractual partners from the Posta Partner project to help collect tax via
the Tax Money Order service.

On | April, the Czech POINT service launched the new “Performance of identification and drafting of a
public document for identification” program.

May 2017

Ceska posta entered into an agreement with O2 IT Services, the winner of a public contract for a
subcontractor / provider of a data mailbox information system.
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June 2017

Ceska posta switched to a new system in the interest of streamlining its telephone network. The
modernization process included changes in individual office telephone numbers.

Ceska posta and CSOB Group signed a ten-year banking and insurance services cooperalion agreement
at Prague’s main post office. The agreement entered into force on | January 2018, Ceska pogta and
CSOB Group thus continued a quarter-century tradition of cooperation under the Po3tovni spotitelna
name. The partnership will result in an increase in Ceska posta sales, profitability growth, CSOB Group
investment of hundreds of millions of crowns and a 60% increase in the number of specialized teller
windows at post offices.

The first two-teller-window Posta Pariners were opened in Vestec and Lukavec.

July 2017

Ceska posta launched the new Safe Storage service, which provides safe and confidential storage for
official and other important documents.

Customers may now change the place and time of a delivery in the Delivery Change online application
for all registered consignments, including letters.

August 2017

The first Package Rooms were opened. They specialize in the issuance of a ‘Package Room Package’ or
the drop-off of a *Complete Package’. Here, the customer is guaranteed to be able to pay by card and
receive upgraded service thanks 1o a take-a-number system.

October 2017

Ceska posta undertook the market launch of an attractive service called Complete Package. This affords
optima! simplification of the sending of packages and offers an alternative way to avoid the tiresome
steps customers associate with preparing and sending a package. The standard price includes postal
charges, insurance, a handy box, package pick-up from the sender and delivery.

November 2017
Ceska posta representatives received a prize for the third most beautiful postage stamp in the “Hang
Engraved Plate™ category on Thursday, November 2. 2017 at the World Stamp Exhibition for 2016 in

Madrid for a commemorative stamp from the cycle “Works of Art on Stamps: Frantidek Tichy (1896 —
1961)".

December 2017

A public tender was announced and led to the execution of a framework agreement for modernization
of the APOST teller window system.
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4 The year 2017 in numbers and facts

3,200 branches operated by Ceska posta, of which 428 were Posta Parters. [n 2017, 189 Pota Partners were
opened. The Friendly Post project now includes some 700 post offices.

341,848 packages were delivered on 20 November, a record number. Ceska podta held onto its position as a
leader on the market for parcel and Jetter services.

7% — the rate at which the wages of tariff-sataried Ceska po3ta employees increased.

20% of the fleet of Ceska poséta vehicles is comprised of cars that run on alternative fuel, specifically CNG.
in 2017, Ceska posta also tested electric cars and bikes.

10 years — the period for which Ceska posta executed a banking and insurance services agreement with
CSOB Group.

102,830,316 data messages sent by owners of data mailboxes. Total number of data mailboxes created at 31
December 2017: 860,980. The winner of a public contract to supply ISDS for the period 2018 10 2022 was
02 IT Services, s.r.0. The number of data mailboxes continued to rise 10% year on year.

2.7 million traditional postcards and greeting cards were purchased by Ceska posta customers. Customers
sent 449.276 modern electronic Online Postcards from their cell phones and computers.

92,000 actjve users of the Poita Online application, which was given a new look in 2017; technological
adjustments provided for smoother operation. New functions were also added.

88 new stamps were created by Ceska podta in 2017. It won prestigious prizes for its stamps: 2" place in the
category “Most Beautiful Engraved Stamp in Europe 2016™ in the GRANDS PRIX DE L’ART
PHILATELIQUE BELGE ET EUROPEEN 2016 competition for the stamp Jan Jesenius. And 3" place at
the World Stamp Exhibition in Madrid for “Most Beautiful Hand Engraved Plate in the World — 2016 for a
stamp after the model of Frantisek Tichy’s Clown with Monkey, 1933.

21 exhibitions prepared by the Postal Museum.
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5 Company profile

5.1 Mission and strategic goals

» <L

The mission of Ceska posta, s.p. (“Ceska posta”, “the Enterprise” or “CP™) is to be a trusted provider of
quality services in its role as an intermediary for the transfer of information, payments and goods by
traditional and electronic means.

Ceska posta provides universal postal services and endeavours to render them as efficient as possible. Its
current activity is guided by four key trends affecting the market and competitive environment. These are:
new technologies, the change in how we communicate as a resuit of the intemnet, the changing needs of
customers and the liberalization of postal services. Ceska podta intends to carry on its close cooperation with
the state administration, not only through its vast network of post offices, but in new ways, too. CP considers
the ongoing enhancement of its image in the eyes of the public to be essential. Aware of its social role and
responsibilities, it also wishes to be seen as a place where people want to work.

5.2 Legal status of the Enterprise

CP is a legal entity pursuant to Act No. 89/2012 Coll., the Civil Code, as amended. Its legal and proprietary
status is regulated by Act No. 77/1997 Coll.. on state-owned enterprises, as amended.

Ceska posta, s.p. was founded on 1 January 1993 by the Ministry of Economy of the Czech Republic in
accordance with the State-owned Enterprise Act and incorporated by regisiration in the Commercial Register
maintained by the District Court for Prague 1. Section A, Entry No. 7565. Presently, CP is entered in the
Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section A, Entry No. 7565. The Ministry
of Transport and Communications issued a Deed of Foundation of state-owned enterprise Ceska posta. This
document entered 1nto effect on 16 June 1997 and was later amended.

At 31 December 2017, the Ministry of Interior of the Czech Republic acted as Founder of Ceska posta on
behalf of the Czech Government.

5.3 Enterprise administration and management

In the meaning of § 11 of Act No. 77/1997 Coll. on state-owned enterprises, as amended, the bodies of Cesk4
posta are the Director General and the Supervisory Board.

Director General

The Director General (“DG"), as the statutory body of Ceska posta, s.p., manages the activities of the
Enterprise and acts on its behalf. He decides on all matters concerning CP that are not vouchsafed by law to
the competence of the Founder pursuant to § 12 of Act No. 77/1997 Coll. on state-owned enterprises, as
amended.

The Director General appoints deputy directors general who, in his absence, represent him in the full extent
of his powers. The Director General stipulates the order in which his deputies shall represent him. Deputy
directors general are entered in the Commercial Register.

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board oversees the activity of the Director General and the execution of the Enterprise’s
business plan.

Ceska podta, s.p.. registered office: Politickych vézink 909/4, 225 99 Praha 1, Bus Reg. No.: 471 14 983 Page 8785

LEntered in the Commeecinl Register muwntined by the Municipal Court in Prague, hntry No A7$68 www.csshaposio.cz



Ceska posta 2017 Annual Report
Ceska posta

In compliance with Act No. 77/1997 Coll. on state-owned enterprises, as amended, ten members of the
Supervisory Board are appointed and recalled by the Founder and five members are elected and recalled by
the Enterprise employees.

The Supervisory Board has fourteen members at 31 December 2017.
Supervisory Board committees

The Supervisory Board establishes committees as its working, advisory and initiative-proposing bodies.
Members of individual committees primarily meet for preliminary and then more detailed discussions of
materials to be submitted to the Supervisory Board. Members of individual committees are elected and
recalled by the Supervisory Board.

Presently, these Supervisory Board committees exist:

Strategy and Finance Committee
Audit Committee
Human Resources Developmeni Committee

Statutory body and CP management

The composition of the statutory body and the organizational structure of CP at 31 December 2017 can be
found in the 15 Annual Report's financial section.

6 Regulatory framework for postal services

The liberalization of the European Union postal market culminated with the Third Postal Services Directive

(Directive of the European Parliament and of the Council 2008/6/EC of 20 February 2008, which amends -
Directive 97/67/EC with respect to the final formatjon of the internal postal services market of the

Communities). whose objective was gradually and fully to open up the postal services market to economic

competition. Directives Nos. 97/67/EC and 2002/39/EC to which the Third Postal Services Directive ties in

are also part of the legislative framework for European postal services liberalization.

Since April 2005, the area of postal services, as concerns the exercising of regulatory functions, has lay
within the remn of the Czech Telecommunications Office (“CTO™). This national regulatory body exercises
its authority and performs the obligations of an administrative body in this area, particularly in connection
with the applicable provisions of the Postal Services Act.

The Czech postal services market has been fully liberalized since 1 January 2013 based on an amendment of -
Act No. 29/2000 Coll. on postal services (the “Postal Services Act™). The framework for liberalization
comprises a set of CTO-issued regulations via which it sets the obligations of operators providing or
arranging postal services, the framework for reporting expenses and revenues and the financing of basic
services and the conditions for ensuring universal access to basic services.Ceska posta holds a postal license
for the period 2018-2022 that was granted by CTO Decision No. CTU-70 580/2017-610/Vof 12 December
2017 on the basis of the § 22 of the Postal Service Act.The postal license comprises the obligation of Ceska
posta permanently to ensure unjversal access to all the basic services set out in § 3(1) of the Postal Services
Act in the stipulated quality nationwide. The basic services ensured by Ceska poita based on the granted
postal license include free-of-charge delivery of postal consignments of up to 7 kg to the blind. Based on the
granted postal services license, Ceska posta remains an entity officially appointed to render services that
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must be ensured on the basis of obligations arising from the Czech Republic’s membership in the Universal
Postal Union.

The rights and obligations of the postal services provider and the postal license holder are covered by Title V
of the Postal Service Act. According to the law, the Company must annually publish and submit complete
and truthful information to CTO about the results of providing and securing basic services and an evaluation
of the fulfilment of the quality parameters. The method, form and content of pubjished information are
determined by implementing the legislation of CTO (decrees). Czech Telecommunication Office annually
publishes the sumumary report on the obligations fulfilment entrusted to the postal license holder.

The deficiencies identified in the CTO Report for 2016 are being remediated by the Company on
a continuous basis. No material financial claims of the CTO or other entities against the Company, which
could be enforceable by law, were identified in the Report.

6.1 Selected obligations of a postal license holder

Plnit postovni povinnost zpisobem, ktery je v souladu s potfebami vefejnosti a se zakladnimi
kvalitativnimi pozadavky, vcéetné soustavného poskytovani informaci o zakladnich sluzbach a zptisobu
Jejich uziti.

Nabizet poStovni sluzby, na néz se vztahuje postovni povinnost, podle potovnich podminek

za dostupné ceny umoziujici vyuzivani zakladnich sjuZeb v rozsahu odpovidajicim bémé potrebé osob.

Zajistit, aby nedochazelo k neodivodnénému zvyhodriovani nebo znevyhodiovani zajemcl o zakladni
sluzby, které jsou obsazeny v jeho postovni licenci.

Umoznit kazdy pracovni den nejméné jedno postovni podani a dale alespon jedno dodani na adresu
kazdé fyzické nebo pravnické osoby (vyjimky stanovi provadéci vyhlaska).

Umoznit transparentnim a nediskriminaénim zptisobern na zakladé pisemné smlouvy pristup ostatnim
provozovatelim k prvkim poStovni infrastruktury a k zvlastnim sluzbam souvisejicim s provozovanim
postovni infrastruktury.

7 Report on activities

Cesk4 posta made a consolidated before-tax profit of CZK +110 million in 2017, which translated to CZK +98
million after tax. Ceska posta alone made a pre-tax profit of CZK +91 million.

Consolidated operating revenues fell year-on-year by CZK 470 million to CZK 18,905 million and
consolidated operating costs fell by CZK 335 million to CZK 18,818 million. The main reason was the splitting
off of part of the Enterprise (the ICT sluzby branch establishment) and its subsequent merger with the state
enterprise Narodni agentura pro komunikaéni a informaéni technologie, s.p., as at 1 July 2016. In the first half
of 2016, the ICT sluzby branch establishment had operating revenues of CZK 543 million and operating costs
of CZK 529 million.

Revenues on postal operations (including Postservis services) fell year-on-year by just under 1% of the total.
The biggest fall was for ordinary letters, which were affected by the increasing use of electronic
communications both in corporate and retai] areas. The same reasons led to a fall in revenues from related
Postservis services for printing and completing letiers (by CZK -48 million). The fall in revenues on postal
orders continued (down CZK -96 million). On the contrary, the main growth segment was the delivery of
domestic parcels totalling CZK 131 million. Other area with rising revenues was international mail, where
revenues grew by CZK 6] million year-on-year. This was primarily caused by dynamic growth in incoming
mail from China (up by 59% year-on-year), the positive effect of which was reduced by the strengthening

Ceska postu, .p.. regiswered office: Politickych vazig 909/4, 225 99 Prahg &, Bus, Reg. No.: 471 14 683 Page 10/85

Fnteed in the Comnercial Repister misntained by the Municiput Court in Prague, Fntry No, A756$ waw ceskapostiez



Ceska posta 2017 Annual Report
Ceska posta

CZK. The third growth area was cash services (cash collection and processing), where revenues grew by CZK
35 million.

There was a slight increase in revenues from procurement (up CZK +16 million). The biggest increase in
revenues was in Postovni spofitelna (CZK +66 million) due to the influence of fees for the modernisation of
specialised counters and other development projects. There was also success in sales of bets and lottery tickets
(up CZK +13 million) and supplementary pension insurance (up CZK +9 million). On the other hand, revenues
from pension distribution and other traditional services continued to fall (down CZK -29 million).

Of the other services, customers’ increasing interest in PostSignum Certification Authority services is worth
mentioning (up CZK +11 miltion).

In other operating revenues there was an increase by CZK 25 million, where revenues on sales of unneeded
properties and disposed vehicles rose by CZK 166 million. There was a significant negative impact due to the
lower claim for compensation for the net costs of the universal service (down CZK 100 milion), as CP can,
under the Act on Postal Services, claim from the government for 2017 no more than CZK 500 million, whereas
it was CZK 600 million for 2016.

After removal of the influence of the ICT sluzby branch establishment. consolidated operating costs rose by
CZK 194 million as a consequence of the growth of payroll costs by CZK 588 million. The Enterprise’s
management continued to perform one of its main priorities of gradually increasing emplovees' salaries within
the bounds of what is possible for the Enterprise. Savings dominated in other cost categories. The biggest fall
was in the costs of international outgoing mail paid to foreign postal administrations (terminal charges). They
fell by CZK 237 million, where the stronger CZK and the transition from the REIMS system to eCIP, which
led to a reduction of rates to most European countries, had an effect.

There was success in terms of reductions in the costs of land lines by CZK 23 million and also the costs of
data services by CZK 17 million. There was a year-on-year fall in the costs of air transport, where there was a
lower number of EMS consignments to China. Lower costs were spent on advertising campaigns, advice and
other services. The costs of maintaining SW rose by CZK 15 million and the increase in parcels increased the
costs of text message advice for mail by CZK 13 million.

The consolidated financial profit showed a year-on-year improvement by CZK 34 million, which was
primarily due to the positive balance of exchange rate differences, rising from CZK +13 million in 20)6 to
CZK +55 million in 2017.
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Trends of basic financial indicators — consolidated

Assets (CZK million)
Equily (CZK million)

Operating revenues (CZK million)

Of which: Sales of own products
and services (CZK million)

Operating costs {CZK million)
Of which: personal costs (CZ million)
Profit before tax (CZK million)

Net profit (CZK million)

Profit before tax (CZK million)
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Development of operational income (CZK m|II|on)
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8 Branch or division abroad

Ceska posta has no branch or division abroad.

9 Information on R&D activities

The Enterprise undertakes no R&D activities.

10 Information on environmental protection

The Enterprise’s strategy when it comes to environmental protection is, aside from fulfilling its statutory
obligations in ail spheres of environmental protection, to reduce emissions of pollutants. CP uses vehicles
that run on CNG, which currently comprise some 20% of the corporate fleet.

11 Information on labour relations

The relatively high rate of employee mobility greatly impacted employment rate development in 2017.
This trend has prevailed since 2015, when the CR saw a general boom and an increase in job market
opportunities. In 2017, Cesk4 posta reported an unfortunate 18% employee turnover rate, which is 3% higher
than in 2016. Nationwide, employee turnover worsened by 4.3%, which means that other companies on the
labour market are finding themselves in a similar situation.

The average adjusted employee headcount for 2017 was 29,612, which is 362 fewer than in 2016. Roughly
half of this drop (177) is a result of the spin-off of the [CT services branch (OZ ICTs) at 30 June 2016, while
the other half is down to organizational changes (185), primarily gradual implementation of the Poéta Partner
project and the streamlining of delivery areas in connection with a drop in the number of packages.

The average monthly salary for 2017 is CZK 23,895. This represents a 4.]1% increase year on year, but an
increase of 5% net of OZ [CTs figures for H1 2016. This growth is impacted by:

a 3.3% increase in tariff salaries agreed with unions as of 1 April 2017,
payment of exiraordinary compensation in H2 2017 for the provision of basic postal services in the
amount of CZK 200 million in personnel expenses, which represents a 2% salary increase.

The average salary of tariff employees increased by 5.6% in the period Q2 through Q4 2017, meaning the
promise to employees that ensued from union salary negotiations was kept.

The increase in tariff salaries was implemented differently for different employees:
based on a salary increase agreed with unions for the respective professional group,
based on annual evaluation results.

In addition to salaries, Ceska posta provides its employees with employee benefits that on average toral CZK
1.500 per employee per month (financial contributions to meal tickets, supplementary pension insurance and
Jife insurance, contributions to leisure activities, spa stays, children’s camps, culture and sport and more).
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Moreover, Ceské poita employees have 1 extra week of vacation (5 weeks in total) and a work week reduced
by 2.5 hours.

12 Protecting CP, its employees and customers

12.1 Risk management

In 2017, risk management continued to be an integral strategic part of corporate governance at Ceska posta.
[t provided for the informed acceptance and management of all business risks with the aim of reducing any
negative effects on management and on implementation of the Cesk4 posta business plan.

12.2 Security

The fundamental mission of the Ceska posta security division is to ensure basic security requirements for the
smooth operation of all services, to ensure the protection of Ceska posta employees and clients and to protect
the Enterprise’s own and managed assets.

Tasks within the remit of the security division include crisis management and planning, addressing external
and internal criminal activity against Ceska podta, measures to combat money laundering and the financing
of terrorism, administering confidential information used in Ceska posta operations and workplace health
and safety. The security division also ensures manual reviews of the protection of personal information under
the methodological direction of the legal department.

12.3 Compliance

The compliance system at Ceska posta reflects the need for CP activities to comply with all applicable laws
and regulations, thus reducing the risk of penalties and damage to the Enterprise’s reputation, while
strengthening its transparency and credibility.

12.4 Internal audit

In 2017, all activities were carried out in compliance with the binding provisions of the International
Standards for the Professional Practice of [nternal Auditing issued by the International Institute of Internal
Audit and by rigorous adherence 1o the associated control docurnentation of Ceska podta, i.e. the Internal
Audit Charter, the Code of Ethics and the Ceska posta Internal Audit Performance Guidelines.

12.5 Ombudsperson

In 2017, 2,774 Ceskd posta customers contacted the ombudsperson; their petitions were accordingly
investigated, assessed and processed. This year, the ombudsperson handled SO1 petitions, of which 127
concerned assessments of the handling of customer claims and complaints; in 90 cases, the ombudsperson
upheld the existing Ceska posta decision, and in the other 37 cases, she sided with the customer. Some 374
petitions were handled at the customer's initiative with no standard prior procedure. In 37 cases, a
recommendation was made that the Director General provide additional customer compensation. Such
payments were made from a special-purpose account. The approved amount on this account was CZK
112,000 in 2017. A total of CZK 141,932.80 was paid out in 2017, i.e. around 27% above the planned
amount.
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12.6 Office of the Ombudsperson for Employees

For the purpose of defending the legitimate interests of employees in the performance of their duties, Ceska
posta established the Office of the Ombudsperson for Employees. The ombudsperson commenced to perform
her role in May 2016. Employees can contact her in writing, by phone or in person.

13 Provision of information pursuant to Act No. 106/1999 Coll. on
freedom of access to information

Ceska posta, s.p.. as an obliged entity in the meaning of Act No. 106/1999 Coll. on freedom of access to
information, as amended, herewith, in compliance with § 18 of Act No. 106/1999 Coll. on freedom of access
to information. issues this annual report on its activities in the area of the provision of information based on
Act No. 106/1999 Coll. on freedom of access to information, in 2017:

1. Number of received requests for information: In 2017, a total of 82 petitions designated as requests for
the provision of information was filed pursuant to Act No. 106/1999 Coll. on freedom of access to information,
as amended.

2. Number of issued decisions denying a request (or part thereof): In 2017, a total of 29 decisions on the
demnial of a request and 6 decisions on a partial dental of a request for the provision of information were issued

in the meaning of § 15 of Act No. 106/1999 Coll. on freedom of access to information.

3. Number of appeals submitted against decisions: In 2017, a total of 10 appeals against decisions not to
provide information was filed.

4. Copy of substantive parts of every court decision in the matter of a review of the legitimacy of a Ceska
posta, s.p. decision to deny a request for the provision of information:

Municipal Court in Prague Judement No. 11 A 201/2015-36 of 20 April 2017

Statement:

(. Decision No. JID: 594712/2015/CP of the Director General of Ceska podta, s.p. dated 30 September 2015 is
nullified and the case is returned to the respondent for further proceedings.

n. Respondent shall pay claimant's proceeding costs in an amount of CZK 13,200 within thirty days of the
effective date of the judgment, to be remitted to the attention of the claimant’s representative Mgr. Filip Hajny.
attorney.

The request for information was denied on the grounds of trade secrets. The count found the Ceska poita, s.p.

decision to be unreviewable, and therefore nullified and returned it to Ceska posta, s.p. for further proceedings.
On 29 May 2017, the Director General of Ceska posta, s.p. issued a new decision,

Municipal Court in Prague Judgment No. 8 A 68/2017-37-41 of 7 September 2017

Statement:

l. Decision No. JID 208402/2017/CP of the Director General of Ceska podta, s.p. dated 23 March 2017, and
Decision No. JID 1115081/2017/CP of the Director General of Ceska posta, s.p. dated 14 February 2017,
are nullified, and the obliged entity is ordered to provide the claimant with the information requested in his
petition of 28 January 2017.

(1, Respondent is obliged to pay claimant’s proceeding costs in an amount of CZK 16,962.84 to be remitted to
the attention of the claimant's representative, Mgr. Jaroslav Barta. attorney. within 30 days of the judgment's
effective date.
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The Municipal Court in Prague ruled that Ceska posta, s.p. is an obliged entity that does business with public
funds and is thus obliged, when so requested, to provide information on the amount, purpose and conditions
of a payment provided to an individual. The requested information was provided on 6 November 2017.

5. Summary of costs incurred by Ceska posta, s.p. in connection with litigation regarding rights and
obligations pursuant to Act No. 106/1999 Coll. on freedom of access to information:

In connection with litigation regarding rights and obligations pursuant to Act No. 106/1999 Coll. on freedom
of access to information, Cesk4 podta, s.p. incurred total costs of CZK 30,162.84.

6. Provided exclusive licenses: In 2017, Ceskd posta did not provide any exclusive licenses.

7. Complaints about the procedure for handling requests for information (§ 16a of Act No. 106/1999
Coll. on freedom of access to information, as amended), grounds for their submission and brief
description of the manner of their resolution: In 2016, three complaints were filed about the procedure
used by Ceska posta to handle requests for information pursuant to § 16a of Act No. 106/1999 Coll. on
freedom of access to information. The petitioners filed their complaints because Ceskd posta had failed 1o
provide requested information by the statutory deadline. The information provider failed to meet the
statutory deadline for administrative reasons. For this, the information provider apologized to the petitioners
based on their submitted complaints.

Ceskd podta. \.p.. registered office: Politickych vezadh 900/4, 225 99 Prahu 1, Bus. Reg. No.. 471 14 983 Page 17/85

Entered in the Commercrnl Register mainiained by the Municipad Court in Prigue. Entry No, A7$6S MWAWW ceskuposiacy



Ceska posta 2017 Annual Report
Ceska posta

14 Subsequent events

CP quantifies net expenses incurred to provide basic services for the 2017 billing period and asks the CTO for
reimbursement of these expenses, which represent an unfair financial burden for CP as the holder of a postal
license. The request filing deadline is 31 August 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, Marek Jansky quit the position of the Chief Director of Finance Division.

On | Januvary 2018, Lukas Svoboda was appointed the Chief Director of Finance Division.

On 30 January 20] 8, Pavel Chyja was appointed the second Deputy Director General.
On 28 February 2018, Martin Elkan was recalled from the Director General position.

Effective from 1 March 2018, Vit Bukvic was entrusted with the management of Ceska posta, s.p., based on
the Resolution of DG 16/2018.

On 2 March 2018, Jiti Linert was appointed the Chief Director of Postal Operations and Logistics Division.
On 5 March 2018, Ceska posta received a decision on determining the net costs of providing basic services
for 2015 and 2016 from CTO — for more details see |5 Financial section - subsection 15.2.2.7. Net Costs of

Universal Service,

No significant events impacting the annual financial statements compiled at 31 December 2017 occurred
between the balance sheet date and date the Annual Report and financial statements were prepared.
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15 Financial section — Auditor’s Reports, standalone financial
statements (statements, notes); consolidated financial statements
(statements, notes)

This section contains the standalone financial statements of the Enterprise and the consolidated financial
statements of Ceské posta Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and comprises:

Reports of the Independent Auditor on the Standalone financial statement and Consolidated
financial statements

Financial statements prepared for the year ended 31 December 2017 in CZK million (standalone,
consolidated):

Balance sheet at 31 December 2017

Income statement at 31 December 2017

Summary of cash flows for 2017

Summary of changes in equity for the year ended 3 December 2017

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Ceska posta, &.p.. regisiered oftice: Poliuekych vezid 909/4, 235 99 Praha 1, Bus. Reg. No.: 471 14 983 Page 19/85

Entersd 1n the Commiereiyl Register maintained by the Municrpal Court m Praguc. Entry No. A7565 WAV CCSRAPOSTLTY



Ceska posta 2017 Annual Report
Ceska posta

15.1 Report of the Independent Auditor for the Standalone financial
statement
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(Translation of a report originally issued in Czech - see Note 2 to the financial statements.)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Founder of Ceskd poita, s.p.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ceskd posta, s.p. (the Company) prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
asummary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. For details
of the Company, see Note 1 to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Augitors and Auditing Standards of the Chamber
of Auditors of the Czech Republic, which are International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as amended
by the related application clauses. Our responsivilities under this Iaw and regulation are further described
in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
ingependent of the Company in accordance with the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted
by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matters

The prior year financial statements of Ceskd posta, s.p. were audited by another auditor whose report
dated 17 March 2017 expressed an vunqualified opinion on those statements.

Other Information

tn compliance with Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, the other information comprises the information
included in the Annua!l Report other than the financial statements and auditor’'s report thereon.
The Statutory Body of the Company is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. In connection with our audit
of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. (n addition, we assess whether
the other information has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with applicable law
or regulation, in particular, whether the other information complies with law or regulation in terms
of formal requirements and procedure for preparing the other information in the context of materiality,
i.e. whether any non-compliance with these requirements could influence judgments made on the basis
of the other information.
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Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report that;
s The other information describing the facts that are also presented in the financial statements is,
in all material respects, consistent with the financial statements; and
s The other information is prepared in compliance with applicable law or regulation.

(n addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company
obtained in the audit, on whether the other information contains any material misstatement. Based on the
procedures we have performed on the other information obfained, we have not identified any material
misstatement.

Responsibilities of the Company’s Stalutory Body and the Supervisory Board for the financial Statements

The Statutory Body is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic and for such internal
control as the Statutory Body determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Statutory Body is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Statutory Body either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with above requlations will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the above faw or reguiation, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting @a materia!l misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures mage by the Statutory Body.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Statutory Body's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Audit. s.r.o.
License No. 401

%/PM 77 M“L—J

Roman Hauptfleisch, Auditor
License No. 2009

23 March 2018
Prague, Czech Republic

At MaFloreac 2116715, 11000 Prague 1 - Move Meslo,
t ninistered by the Municipal Court in Praque,
Section C, entry no, BB504, under Identification No, 26704153,
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15.2 Standalone financial statement

15.2.1  Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 in CZK million

BALANCE SHEET
__ (in millions Czech crowns)
Roforenco ASSETS [ 31.12. 2017 31,12.2016
‘ Gross Provision Net Not
a b 1 2 3 4
TOTAL ASSETS | 3403 (13,809) 20,226 20,849
B. Fixed assets [zaanT, {13,569) 9,748 9,894
B. | Intangible fixed assets | 1.984 (1.621) 383 348
8. ) 2. Royaltles 1.858 {1,554) 302 238
B. I 21. Software 1,853 {1.552) 301 237
B ¥ 2.2, Other royaltas 3 {2) \ 1
8. | 4. Other intangisle fixed assots 68 (687) 1 3
B. I 5. Advances paid and {ntangible fixed assots (n the course of 80 0 80 105
construction
B 1 52 Intangible fixed assels in the course of construction 60 0 60 105
Bo kL Tangible fixed assots 21,037 (11,948) 9,089 9,232
=N A 1. Land and construciions 42,504 (5,471) 7,033 1417
B. I 11 Land 843 0 843 880
B. Il 3 2. | Constuction 11,661 (5.471) 6.190 6,257
B. It 2, Equipment 8,156 (8.470) 1.888 1,897
B. It 4 Other langible fixed assets 5 0 5 4
8. 5 Advances paid and tanglble fixed assots in the course of construction 372 {7 365 414
B. I 52 Tangible fixed assets in the course of construction 372 (7) 365 414
B. L | Long-term investments 236 0 296 316
B. 1 1. Investments - subsidianes and controliing party 79 4] 79 72
8. . 2. Loans and borrowings - subsidiaries and controlling party 0 [ V] 25
B M, A, Other long-tarm invastments n secunlies 217 0 217 219
C. Current assets 10,602 {240) 10,362 10,884
(e I, Inventories 270 {73) 197 324
C. 1 1 Raw materials 21 (68) 143 | 158
(= 3. Finished goods and goods for resale 59 (5) 54 | 166
(o | 32 Goods for resale 59 (5) 54 ' 166
CORl Receivables 5,080 (167} 4,913 4,183
cC 1 Long-term receolvablas 524 ] 524 | 1317
c 1.4, Trade (ecavables 3 3 3| 2
c. n 1.5, Rocelvables - othor 21 0 521 | 1315
c. 1 1.5 2. | Long-term advances paid 5 0 5 I 5
€ 4 15 3 | Estimated receivables 500 0 500 | 1,300
c I 15 4 | Other recaivables 16 [+] 16| 10
c. n 2 Short-term receivables 4,556 (167) 4389 | 2,866
uf wheeh entrusied rosources can . 140 | IR%)
! C 1. 21 Trade receivables 1.555 {82) 1473 | 1.318
| of which Cntrusted reanurs e 140 ¢ 20 |
l (o7 | 22 Recewables - subsidianes and controlling party ] 0 9 | 8
I c. 2.4, Rocolvables - othar 2.992 (85) 2,907 | 1,539
lc. 2.4, 1. | Receivablos from shareholders 21 {4) 17 | 20
fc. w24 3. | Taxes - receivables from the state 55 0 55 | 26
c n 24 4 | Shont-term advances paid 228 0 228 222
c. 2.4, 5. | Estimated raceivables 2,537 Q 2,537 1,182
c N 2.4 6. | Othar recavables 151 (81) 70 79 |
CaIE Short-term financial investments 0 0 0 50 |
c.m 2 Other short-torm invostments 0 0 0 50 |
SV Cash 5,252 0 5,252 6,327
C. W, 1. Cash in hand 4,368 [ 4,358 4,284
@1 which entrusted resources { T
c.ow. 2 Cash at bank BB4 o | 884 2,043
of which entrusted resources 337 '\'_‘ 337 1}
D. Prepayments and accrued income 119 0 119 i
0. 1. Prepaid expenses 115 0 115 68
D. kR Accrued income 4 0 4 3
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BALANCE SHEET - Liabilities and Equity (in millions Czech crowns)
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Rofarence TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 31.12. 2017 31.12. 2016
b 5 6
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 20,229 20,849
A Equity 10,145 10,239
A L Share capital 3,588 3.588
A 1 Share capital 3,588 3,588
AL Share premium and capital ributi 6,102 6,184
| AL 2 Capital contributions 6,102 6,184
A . 2.1, Other capital conlributions 6,093 6,172
AL 22 Assets and liabilities (avaluation 9 12
AL Other roserves 3377 376
Ao Other reserve funds 3569 359
AL 2 Slatutory and cther reserves 18 17 1
ALY, Profit / {loss} for the current period 78 91
B. + C Liabilities 9,597 10,070
B. Provisions 571 701
B. 4. Other pravisions 571 | 701
C. Liabilities 9,026 9,369
IR Long-term liabilities 306 303
c 4 : Trade payables 1 18
c 1 & | Deterred tax iability 295 287
c. I Short-term liabilities 8,720 9,066
c. 2. Liabilities due to financial institubons 68 a4
of which entrusted resources 68
c. 3 Short-term advances recelved 794 480
c. 4. Trade payables 5,062 5.5951%
of wiueh entrusted resources
c 0 6 Liabilities - subsidiaries and contraling party 31 23
c. 8. Liabilitles - other 2,765 | 2,978
[N | 81 Liabititres to empioyees 539 555
c. 8.4 Liabilities for social secunty and health insurance 337 350
[ 1] 85 Taxes and state subsidres payable 197 123
C. I 8es Estimated payables 1,393 1,854
c I 87 Other (iabilities 299 296
D. Accruals and deferred income 487 540
D. 2, | Deferred income 487 540
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INCOME STATEMENT
(in millions Czech crowns)
TEXT Accounting period
' somao | e e
b 1 2
1. Safes of products and services 17,408 8,872
. Sales of goods 340 113
A, Cost of sales 4,496 2,405
A 1. Cos) of goods sold 253 81
A 2. Raw matenals and consumables used 1,252 658
A 3 Services 2,991 1,666
C. QOwn work capitalised (20) {9
0. Staff costs 12,702 £,285
0. 1. Wages and salaries 9,281 4,609
0. 2. Soclal security, hoalth Insurance and other soclal costs 3.419 1.676 |;
0 2.1 Social security and haallh insurance costs 3080 1.506 I
0. 22 Other soaat cosls 339 170
- E. Valuo adjustmants in operating acitivitios 818 388
E. 1. Valuo adjustmonts of fixod agsots 825 387
E. 1.4, Deprociation. amortisation and write off of fixed assets 829 41N
E. 12 Ptoviston for inpairment of fixed assets (4) (24)
- E. 2, Provision for impairment of «aventones 4 7
E. 3. Provision for impairment of receivables a1 (6)
i 1L Oporating income - other 1.118 778
[I[R 1. Sales of fixed assets 345 168
1] 3 \ithel operabag income 773 810
31 Compensation for the nel cost on providing basic poslal servicas 500 429
32 Other operatng income 273 181
F. Oporaling axponsos - othor 808 578
F 1 Net book vatue of fixed assets sold 26 27
F. 3. Taxes and charges from opecating activities 91 39
F 4. Oparating provisions and complex prepaid expenses (130} 77
F 7 Other operating expenses 822 435
. Operating rosult {+/-) 62 116
i . Income trom sales of long-term investments - $haros 2 1
v 2 lncome from sales of investments - olher 2 i
| V. Intecost and similar income 5 3
R I \l 2 Other interest and gimilar incorne 5 3
(. Provision (o impaioment of financial assets (Y] [}
Vil Other finandial income 132 2z
K. Other financial expenses 117 | 48
& Financial result 29 (20)
g3 Net profit / (loss) before taxation 91 96
| L. Tax on profit or loss 13 -3
L 1. Tax on profit or loss - current S 15
L. 2, Tax on peofit of loss - deferred 8 (10)
vix Net profit / (loss) after taxation 78 91
b Net profit/ (loss) for the financial period 78 91
v Net turnover for the financial period 19,006 9,789

Ceska posta. s.p., reyistercd olfice: Politichych vézad 909/4, 225 99 Prahis 1, Bus. Reg, No. 471 14 983
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2017

(In CZK Year ended 6 months endcd
milltons) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6377 7.907
of which entrusted resources 3.814 5328
Net profit on ordinary activities before tax 91 96
Al Adjustments for non-cash movements: 355 320
Al Amortization, depreciation of fixed assets and abolished investment projects §29 41
A2 Changc in allowances and provisions with respect to operating aclivities (148) 34
A3 Profits from disposal of fixed assets (319) (14))
A5 Net interest income ) 3
A6 Adjustments for other non-cash movements () (1)
A¥ Net cash flow from operating activities before tax and changes in working 446 416
capital
A2 Change in non-cash components of working capital 914) (1.580)
A2 of which entrusted resources (78) (1.514)
A1 Change in receivables and accrued income (491) (792)
A2/ of whicl entrusied resources 7 101
A2.2 Change in current and long-lerm liabilitiex ang deferred income (5435) (775)
A2.2 of which entrusted resources 71 (1.615)
A23 Change in inventorics 122 13)
AX Net cash flow from operating activities before tax (468) (1.164)
Ax* of which entrusted resonrces (78) (1.514)
A4 Inierest received 5 3
AS Income tax overpayment (33) (79)
AFH* Net cash flow from operafing activitics (496) (1.240)
of which entrusted resources (78) (1.514)
Cash flows from investing activities
8.1 Purchase of fixed assets (889) (330)
B.2 Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 413 168
B.3. J.oans and borrowings to related partics 16 0
Bx* Net cash flow from investing activities (460) (162)
Cash Nows from financing activities
CH Change in long-term and current liabilitics falling within financial activity 0 2
C2 Change in equily (169) (80)
C.2.1 Direct payments ffom funds (169) (80)
C3 Effect of the spin-ofT 0 {50
[ Glokeld Net cash flow from financing activities (169) (128)
Net deerease in cash and cash equivalents (1,125) (1.530)
of which entrusted resources (78) (1.514)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 8252 6377
of which entrusted rexources 3,736 3814
Ceska podta, 5.p., registered vifice Pohtickych vaxho 90974, 225 99 Pruha 1, Bus. Rep. No.: 471 14 982
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Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 December 2017

Gatn or loss

on Other
revaluation funds Profit (loss)
Other of assets and Reserve from for the
(In CZK millions) Share capital  capital funds liabilities fund profit period Total
Balance as at 31 December 3,588 6.276 12 349 16 241 10,492
2015
Profit disinbution 0 75 0 0 166 (241 0
Use of funds 0 0 0 0 (83) 0 (85)
Gains or losses from 0 0 3 0 0 3)
revaluation (o fair value
Profit for the period 0 0 0 0 0 73 73
Balancc as at 30 June 2016 3,588 6,351 9 359 97 73 10.477
Effect of the spin-off 0 (244) 0 0 ) (6) 251
Balance as at 1 July 2016 3588 6.107 9 359 96 67 10.226
Profit distribution 0 67 0 0 67 0
Use of funds 0 (2) Q (79) 0 (&1
Gains or losses from 0 0 3 0 0 3
revaloation 1o fair valye
Proiit for the period 0 0 0 0 0 91 91
Balancc as at 31 December 3,588 6,172 12 359 17 91 10,239
2016
Protit distribution 0 0 0 0 170 0 170
Use of funds 0 79) 0 0 (169) (91) (339)
Gains or losses from revaluation 0 0 (&) 0 0 0 3)
10 fair value
Profit for the pertod 0 0 0 0 78 78
Balance as at 31 December 3.588 6,093 359 18 78 10,145
2017
Cuski pota, 8.p., registered office: Politickyeh vazad 909/4, 225 99 Praha t, Bus. Reg. No.: 471 14 983 Page 2R/88
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15.2.2 Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
15.2.2.1 General Information

15.2.2.1.1 Introductory information about the Company

Ceskaé podta, s. p. (“the Company” or “Ceska posta™) is a state-owned enterprise. It is a legal entity

conducting its business activities using assets of the Czech government under its own name and on its own

account. The founder of the Company is the Czech State. The Company was established on 1 January 1993

and the founder was then represented by the Ministry of Transport and Communications of the Czech

Republic. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the role of the founder of the Company under the
govermiment’s name was carried out by the Ministry of Interior of the Czech Republic. As at 31 December

2017, the Company had its registered office at Politickych vézii 909/4, Prague 1, Czech Republic. The

Company's identification number is 471 14 983 and it is registered in the Commercial Register of the

Municipal Court in Prague, Section A, fnsert No. 7565. Ceska posta is a business entity pursuant to Act No.

77/1997 Coll., on State-Owned Enterprise, as amended. -

The Company’s activities are regulated by the Czech Telecommunication Office (“CTO™).
The main business activities of the Company are as follows:

provision of postal services,

provision of international postal services,

provision of services of central procurement for government (public) administration.

The corporate bodies of the Company are the Director General and the Supervisory Board. The Director
General is the Company's statutory body.

Organizational structure as at 31 December 2017 was as follows:

Ceska podia. s.p.. regisiered office: Poltickyeh vt 909/3, 225 99 Praha 1, Bus. Reg. No.: 471 14 083 Page 20/84
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Top management of the Company as at 31 December 2017 was as follows:

Entered in the

Top management Date of Commercial
of the Company Position appointment Reglster
Ing. Martin Elkén Director General 13 June 2014 1 July 2014

Deputy Director General, Chief Director of Postal Operations and

Vit Bukvic o o 1 January 2014
Logistics Division

Marek Jansky Deputy Director General, Chief Director of Finance Division 1 July 2014

Jan Foubik Chief Director of Trade and Marketing Division 1]July 2014

Pavel Chyla Chief Director of ICT and e-Government Division 14 July 2014

1 September 2015
1 December 2016

Ales Posplisil Chief Director of Property Management Division

Ondfej Skorpil Director of Development and Strategy Division

22 January 2014

25 August 2014

The following information was also entered in the Commercial Register as at 31 December 2017:

Date of

Management of the Company Position appointment

Entered in the
Commercial Register

Petr Slechta Deputy Director General, Director of Security 21 March 2016

19 April 2016

Between the balance sheet date and the date of preparation of the financial statements there were changes

Members of the Supervisory Board as at 31 Decemnber 2017 were as follows:

Name

Position

Jan Mare3

Jifi Novacek
Karel Koukal
Lubomir Krejsa

Chairman

First Vice-Chairman
Vice-Chairman
Vice-Chairman

Stépan Grochal Member
Sona Lavi¢kova Member
Jaroslav Strouhal Member
Ludovit Gulazsi Member
OldFich Cernoch Member
Jan Kasal Member
Bohumila Misiarova Member
Frantisek Lukl Member
Josef Zednik Member
Peor Kamenik Member
Members of the Supervisory Board as at 31 December 2016 were as follows:
Name Position
Jan Mares Chairman
Jifi Novatek First Vice-Chairman
Karel Koukal Vice-Chairman

Lubomir Krejsa

Vice-Chairman

Stépén Grochal Member
Sona Lavickova Member
Jirf Haviicek Member
Jaroslav Strouhal Member
Ludovit Gul4zsi Member
Oldrich Cernoch Member
Jan Kasal Member
Bohumila Misiarova Member
Page 31/8S
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Ceska posta
[iFf Zimola Member
Frantidek Lukl Member
osef Zednik Member

Members of the Strategy and Finance Committee of the Company as at 31 December 2017 were as follows:

Name Posifion
Jan Mare3 Chairman
Sepan Grochal Member
Lubomir Krejsa Member
Oldtich Cernoch Member

Members of the Audit Committee of the Company as at 31 December 2017 were as follows:

Name Position
Jan Marcs Chairman
Labomir Krejsa Member
Oldiich Cemoch Member

Members of the Strategy and Finance Committee of the Company as at 31 December 2016 were as follows:

Name Position
Jan Mares Chairman
S1tpan Grochal Member
Lubomir Krejsa Member
Oldtich Cernoch Member

Members of the Audit Committee of the Company as at 31 December 2016 were as follows:

Namec Position
Jan Mar& Chairman
Lubomir Krejsa Member
Oldsich Cemach Member

The Company’s mission is to perform the function of public postal operator involving a duty to provide and
operate postal and basic postal services in accordance with Act No. 29/2000 Coll., on Postal Services, as
amended (,,the Postal Services Act™). The Company holds a license to provide postal services jn accordance
with paragraph 19; the Company also holds the license in accordance with paragraph 2] of the Postal
Services Act. The postal license was granted to the Company until 31 December 2022.

The content of the postal license establishes the duty to secure the general availability of basic postal services
in the whole territory of the Czech Republic.

The rights and obligations of the postal services and the postal license holder are covered by Title V of the
Postal Service Act. According to the law, the Company must annually publish and submit complete and
truthful information to CTO about the results of providing and securing basic services and an evaluation of
the fulfilment of the quality parameters. The method, form and content of published information are
determined by implementing the legislation of CTO (decrees). Czech Telecommunication Office annually
publishes the summary report on the obligations fulfilment entrusted to the postal license holder.

Ceskd poSta, & p.. registered oftice: Politickych vizhd 909/4, 325 99 Praha |, Bus. Reg. No.: 471 14 983 Page 32/85
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15.2.2.2 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act No. 563/1991 Coll. and
related Decree No. 500/2002 Colt. and pursuant to the Czech Accounting Standards for entrepreneurs
applicable for 2017. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in the Czech Republic relevant for large companies and have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except as disclosed below.

Explanation Added for Translation into English

These financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles and standards generally
accepted in the Czech Republic. Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform with
generally accepted accounting principles angd standards in the Czech Republic may not conform with
generally accepted accounting principles.

15.2.2.21 Comparative information

Based on the amendment to the Act on Accounting and implementing Decree effective from 1 January 2016,
indjvidual items of the balance sheet and income statement are presented in a different structure. Jndividual
items of the balance sheet and income statemept for the comparable period were already presented in
accordance with this amendment in the annual financial statements as at 31 December 2016.

The information in the income statement and cash flow statement for the prior period is presented for the
period of six months ended 31 December 2016 due to the spin-off of a part of the Company (the branch ICT
services) and its subsequent merger with the state enterprise Narodni agentura pro komunikaéni a informaéni
infrastruktury, s.p.; the spin-off decisive date was 1 July 2016. The Company prepared extraordinary
financial statements for the period of six months ended 30 June 2016. For this reason, the data from the profit
and loss statement of the current period are not fully comparable with the data from the prior period.

15.2.2.3 Accounting Policies

The valuation methods applied by the Company during preparation of the ordinary financial statements as at
31 December 2017 were as follows:

15.2.2.3.1 Intangible fixed assets

Purchased intangible fixed assets are recorded at cost, which includes all costs related with its acquisition.

Intangible fixed assets with a unit cost exceeding CZK 40 thousand and estimated useful live longer than one
year are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life in accordance with the
Company’s amortization plan, i.e. over 4 years, in exceptional cases, the usefu! Jife is set for longer period
(e.g. according to the usefu! life of the relaied equipment).

[ntangible fixed assets with unit cost of less than CZK 40 thousand are expensed upon acquisition and onty
carried in the operational evidence or off balance sheet.

The amortization plan is updated during the useful life of the intangible fixed assets based on the expected
useful life.

The cost limit for the capitalization of the technical improvements of intangible fixed assets is CZK 40
thousand. An allowaunce for impairment 1s created when the carrying value of an asset is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on expected future
cash flows generated by the certain asset.

Ceskd posta, s.p., registered oftice: Politickych viznd 90974, 225 99 Praha 1, Bus. Reg No.: 471 14 983 Page 33/8S
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15.2.2.3.2 Tangible fixed assets

Acquired tangible fixed assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes all costs related with its
acquisition. The Company does not include loan interest in the acquisition cost of tangible fixed assets.

Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at their replacement cost and are recorded into other
capital funds.

The replacement cost of these assets is based on expert opinion or on market prices of comparable fixed
assets in terms of their wear and tear and performance. The valuation of tangible fixed assets is decreased by
subsidies for the acquisition of assets.

The depreciation plan is updated during the useful life of the tangible fixed assets based on the expected
useful life.

An allowance for impairment is created when the carrying value of an asset is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on expected future cash flows
generated by the certain asset.

An allowance is created mainly in cases of projects whose realization is uncertain or in cases of expected
sales if the expected sales price net of transaction cost is lower than the book value disclosed in the records.

Technical improvement expenses of tangible fixed assets increase the acquisition costs if their expenses
exceed the total amount of CZK 40 thousand and technical improvements are put into use in that year.
Ordinary repairs and maintenance expenses are expensed as incurred.

Tangible fixed assets with a unit cost of less than CZK 40 thousand are treated as inventory and are expensed
upon consumption and are only carried in the operational record. The exceptions are selected low value
assets — selected information technology and postal technology. which is also considered as tangible fixed
assets.

Tangible fixed assets with a unit cost exceeding CZK 40 thousand and selected low value tangible assets
with an estimated vuseful life longer than one year are depreciated using the straight-line method over their

estimated useful lives of assets. The estimated useful lives of tangible assets are as follows:

Number of years

Buildings. halls and constructions 20-45
Plant, machinery and equipment 4-15
Vehicles 6-20
Fomniture, fixtures and equipment 10-20
Handling cquipment 6-20
Computers and related equipment 3-7

15.2.2.3.3 Long-term investments

Long-term financial assets consist of equity investments and other long-term securities and investment.

i. [Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries represent ownership interests in enterprises that are controlled by the Company
(“the subsidiaries™).

Cesha podia, .p., registered office: Politickych vizan 90974, 225 99 Praha {, Bus. Reg, No.: 471 14 983 Page 34/8S
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Investments in subsidiaries and associates are recorded at cost less an allowance for diminution in value,

ii. Other securities and investments

The Company classifies securities and investments, other than investments in subsidiaries and associates, as
held-to-maturity or available-for-sale.

Investments with a fixed maturity that management has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are B}
classified as held-to-maturity and are included in non-current assets, unless the date of maturity falls within
12 months of the balance sheet date. -

Securities and investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold

in response to hiquidity requirements, are classified as available-for-sale. These investments are included in
non-current assets unless management has the express intention of holding the investment for less than

12 months from the balance sheet date, in which case they are included in current assets. The Company
management determines the form of securities and investments at the time of their acquisition and revalues
them on a regular basis as at the financial statements’ date.

All securities and investments are initially recorded at cost, including transaction costs. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently accounted for at amortized cost. Other investments are subsequently accounted
for at fair value. The fair value is determined as the market value of the securities as at the balance sheet
date. Measurement of non-traded securities is based on management estimates.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of trading instruments are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments are recognized as a movement in equity and recognized into the income
statement on realization or when permanently impaired.

An allowance for impairment is established for held-to-maturity investments when their carrying value
is greater than their estimated recoverable amount.

15.2.2.3.4 Inventory

Purchased inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable amount. Cost includes all costs related
with its acquisition {mainly transport costs, customs duty, etc.). The weighted average cost method is applied
for all disposals.

An allowance is created for slow-moving and obsolete inventory based on an analysis of turnover and an
individual evaluation of inventories.

For long-term contracts, the carrying value of work-in-progress also includes the allocation of administrative
overheads. Subcontracted supplies received and other direct costs are expensed and simultaneously recorded

in work-in-progress against revenues, Subcontracted supplies are valued at cost. Work-in-progress is

derecognized once the respective revenues are recorded. -

15.2.2.3.5 Receivables -

Receivables are carried at their nominal value after allowance for doubtful accounts. An allowance against
doubtful receivables is created on the basis of an aging analysis and an individual evaluation of the credit
worthiness of the customers.
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15.2.2.3.6 Short-term financial investments

Short-term financial assets consist of securities available for sale. Securities available for sale are securities
held for the purpose of effecting transactions on the public market in order to make a profit from price
fluctuations in the short-term, but with a maximum period of one year.

15.2.2.3.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, stamps and vouchers and cash in banks, including bank
overdrafts.

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that can be exchanged for a predictable amount of
cash and no significant changes of value over time are expected. Cash equivalents are deposits with

a maturity of less than 3 months from the date of acquisition and liguid debt securities traded in public
markets. Cash equivalents also include Entrusted resources — see subsection 15.2.2.3.8. — Entrusted
resources.

The Company prepared a Cash-flow statement using the indirect method.

An outflow of financial resources in connection with the spin-off of parts of an entity is presented for the
period of six months ended 31 December 2016 as a part of the cash flows from financial services.

15.2.2.3.8 Entrusted resources

[n some cases, the financial resources of third parties are temporarily entrusted to the Company in order to
perform specific transactions (services for clients of Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s. (hereinafter
“CSOB, a.s.™), collection of radio and television license fees, payment of pensions, collection of SIPO
payments, betting games, sale of stamps, vignettes, postal payment services, services for mobile operators,
customs declarations. etc.). These resources are recorded in a separate accounting group apart from the
Company’s own financial resources, and are disclosed on separate lines in the balance sheet. The Company
charges an agreed commission for performing the specific transactions, which is recognized within its own
resources using the accrual principle in the same period to which they relate.

15.2.2.3.9 Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated and recorded at the rate of exchange ruling
as at the first day of the current calendar month as published by the Czech National Bank.

Cash, receivables and liabilities balances denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at the
exchange rate published by the Czech National Bank as at the balance sheet date. All exchange gains and
losses on cash, receivables and liabilities balances are recorded in the income statement.

15.2.2.3.10 Equity

The Company’s financial position and funds are being managed in accordance with Act No. 77/1997 Coll.,
on State-Owned Enterprise, as amended. Pursuant to this Act, the share capita) of the Company corresponds
to the business capital to which the Company has a title on its establishment. The share capital includes both
registered and non-registered capital in compliance with accounting legislation. Other capital funds are
created in accordance with the accounting standards for entrepreneurs.

[n addition, the Company creates a reserve fund from profit, which was created gradually up to 10% of the
share capital.

The Company creates a cultural and socia) fund (“"FKSP"). The creation and use of this fund is being
governed by Section 16 of Decree No. 114/2002 Coll., in connection with Section 3 of Decree No. 310/1995
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Coll., on Cultural and Social Needs Fund, as amended (including changes under Decree No. 167/1997 Coll.
and 314/1999 Coll.) and the use of FKSP is governed by Section 4 to 10 of Decree No. 310/1995 Coll.

15.2.2.3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

15.2.2.3.12 Employee benefits

The Company creates a provision for accrued vacation. The Company creates an estimated payable for
rewards and bonuses to employees who became entitled to payment as at the balance sheet date. The
Company creates a provision for the rewards and bonuses to employees who did not become entitled to
payment as at the balance sheet date. In casc of rewards and bonuses to employees who are entitled for a
payment after the current financial year-end day after meeting specified criteria, the Company creates a
provision on the current financial year-end day.

15.2.2.3.13 Expenses and revenue recognition

Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual principle in the period to which they relate,

Sales are recognized as at the date the services are rendered (with the exceptions disclosed below) or goods
are sold to customers and are stated net of discounts and value added tax.

Sales of postal services realized in cash through sales of postal stamps are recognized when the stamps are
sold. The Company does not have the necessary information that would allow it to record income from these
sales on an accrual basis in respect to the accounting periods in which customers actually use the purchased
postal stamps. The Company's management believes that the costs of collecting such information relating

to the time allocation needed for these services realized through sales of postal stamps would exceed the
benefits of such information.

Revenues from agency services include the commission recejved for the services provided in the relevant
accounting period on an accrual basis.

15.2.2.3.14 Leases

The costs of assets held under both finance and operating leases are not capitalized as fixed assets. Lease
payments are expensed evenly over the life of the lease. Future lease payments not yet due are disclosed

in the notes but not recognized in the balance sheet. The Company activates the respective value of leased
asset in the period when the lease agreement is being concluded and the purchase option is exercised. Lease
payments made in advance are accrued over the lease period.

15.2.2.3.15 Income tax

The income tax expense Is calculated, using the valid tax rate, from the accounting profit increased or
decreased by the permanent or temporary non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income (e.g. non-
deductible provisions and allowances, representation expenses, differences between accounting and tax
depreciation, etc.).

Corporate income tax is recognized in the balance sheet as a part of the item “Taxes and state subsidies
payable” if the tax liability exceeds the tax advances paid. Otherwise. the amount exceeding the tax liability

as a resuit of the advances paid is recorded as *“Taxes - receivables from the state™.

The tax expense is disclosed in the profit and loss as tax from ordinary activities.
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15.2.2.3.16 Deferred tax expense

Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or Liability
in the balance sheet and its tax base. Deferred tax asset is recognized if it is probable that sufficient future
taxable profir will be available against which the asset can be utilized.

15.2.2.3.17 Related parties

The Company's related parties are considered to be the following:

the State represented by the Company’s founder, government institutions, state-owned enterprises
and companies, and other legal entities, where the state has significant influence, while the nature
of the relationship is also decisive and not merely the legal form;

members of the Company’s statutory, supervisory bodies and management and related parties to
these members, including companies or institutions or businesses, where these members and
parties have controlling, proportional or significant influence.

Significant transactions and balances with related parties, related to other than the main postal services are
disclosed in subsection 15.2.2.22 — Related party (ransactions.

15.2.2.3.18 Subsequent events

The effects of events, which occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of preparation of the
financial statements, are recognized in the {inancial statements jn the case that these events provide further
evidence of conditions that existed as at the balance sheet date.

Where significant events occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the preparation of the
financial statements, which are indicative of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance sheet date, the
effects of these events are disclosed, but are not themselves recognized in the financial statements.
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15.2.2.4.1 Intangible fixed assets

Cost
(In CZK millions) Opening balance Additions *) Disposals *) Closing balance
Software 1.716 141 (3) 1.853
Royalties 2 { 0 3
Other inangible fixed assets 6% 0 0 68
Intangible fixed asscts in progress 105 97 (142) 60
Total as at 31 December 2017 1.891 239 (146) 1,984
Total as 5t 31 December 2016 2023 [68 (300)** 1.891

*) Additions und Disposals also Include transfars of intangible fixed assets in progress,

**) The amount ingludes the effect of spin-off 1ptaling CZK (4) miltlon.

Accumulated amortization and net book value

Opening Closing
balance of balance of
accumulated accumulated Net book

(In CZK millions) amortization Additions Disposals amortization  Allowances value
Software (1.459) (78) 3 (1.534) 301
Rovalties () 1) 0 ) t
Other intangiblc fixed assets (65) () 0 (67) 1
Intangible fixed assets 0 0 0 0 60
in propress
Total as at 31 December 2017 (1.525) [¢:28) 3 (1.603) (18) 363
Total as at 31 December 2016 (1,700) (50) 225 (1.525) 346

#) The amaunt includes the effect of spin-afT (n¢aling CZK 1 million

15.2.2.4.2 Tangible fixed assets

Cost
{In CZK millions) Opening balance Addidons ¢) Disposals ') Closing balance
Land 861 1 (19) 843
Constructions 11,503 219 (61) 11,661
Plant, machinery and equipment 5,107 188 {144) 5,151
Vehicles 1,601 113 (168) 1,546
Furniture and fixtures 700 22 (21) 701
Selected tow value tangible assets of less than
CZK 40 thousand 256 135 0 391
Other movable assets 409 0 (42) 367
Art works and collections 4 1 0 5
Tangible fixed assets in progress 421 627 {676) 372
Advances paid for tangible fixed assets 0 0 0 0
Total as at 31 December 2017 20,862 1,306 (1,131) 21,037
Total as at 31 December 2016 20,745 996 (879)** 20,862

") Addltions also Includes transfers of vanglble fixed assets in progress.

**) Disposals of tanglble fixed assets in progress also include deprecintian of last investments.

*+*Y The amount includes the effect of spin-ol1 tataling CZK {109) million

Ceska poila, s.p.. repistered office: PoliickVeh vizini 909/4, 225 99 Praha 1, Bus, Reg, No.: 471 14 983 Page 39/85

Entered in the Commereinl Regixter maintamed by tse Municipal Court i Prague, Entry No. ATS6%

www coskapstacy



Ceska posta 2017 Annual Report

Ceska posta Separate Financial Statement

Accumulated amortization and net book value

Opening Closing
balance of balance of
accumulated accumulated Net book

(In CZK millions) depreciation Additions Disposals depreciation Allowances value
Land 0 0 0 0 0 843
Constructions (5.228) (278) 53 {5.453) (1R) 6.190
Plant, machinery and
equipment (4.038) (293) 144 (4.187) (13) 951}
Vehicles (1.321) 87) 167 (1.241) 0 305
Fumiture and fixtures (566) (24) 20 (570) 0 13]
Selected low value tangible
assets of less than CZK 40
thousand (28) (64) 0 (92) 0 299
Other movable assets (409) 0 42 (367) 0
An works and collections 0 0 0 0 0 5

Tangible fixed assels

in progress 0 0 0 0 (7) 165
Advances paid (or angibte

fined assets

0 0 \ 0 0 0
Total as at 31 December 2017 (11.590) (746) 426 (11.910) (38) 9.089
Total as at 31 December 2016 1607 (361) 378> (11.590) (40) 9232

") The amount Includes the effect of spineolf totaling CZK 79 mallinn.

Based on the stock-count performed, the Company adjusted the carrying value of the tangible fixed assets for
diminution in value through an allowance (see subsection 15.2.2.8 — Allowances).

Over the accounting period ended as at 31 December 2017, the Company did not receive any material fixed
assets free of charge.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, besides the easement in favor of PCS — Praha Center s.r.0.
created in relation to the post office building at Jindridska, Prague | based on an agreement dated 16 April
1997, which is in force until 31 March 2042, the Company has another 367 (359) easements, or similar rights
to tangible fixed assets (rights for sewage pipeline, water pipeline, power and gas connection, hot-water
piping, right of entry, access, crossing, riding, parking of a company car, pre-emptive right and the right of
use) mainly created in favor of the communal and municipal authorities,telecommunications infrastructure
providers , and electricity producers and distributors.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Company did not receive an investment subsidy.

15.2.2.4.3 Long-term investments

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 20) 6, the Company exercised a controlling interest in Postovni
tiskarna cenin Praha, a.s., with its registered office at Ortenovo namésti 542/16, Prague 7 — Hole3ovice,
in which 1t held 16,903 shares out of the total 33,124 shares of a nominal value of CZK 1 thousand.

Poitovni tiskdrna cenin Praha, a.s. 31 Deeember 2017 31 December 2016
Share (in %) 51.03% 51.03%
(In CZK milliong) (In CZK millions)

Total assets 85 90

Equity 82 8s
Profit/(loss) tor the period 3) 0
Acquisttion cost of shares 1R 18
Nominal value of shares {7 17
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Intrinsic value of shares 42 44
The Company did not provide Postovni tiskdrna cenin Praha, a.s., over which it exercises significant
influence, with any loans or borrowings as at 31 December 2017 nor 3] December 2016.

In addition, as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the Company exercised significant influence
in Ceska posta Security, s.r.0. (formerly ABAS CiT Management s.r.0.) with its registered office at
Politickych vézid 909/4, Prague 1, in which it held 100% of the shares. The shares were transferred to the
Company on 31 August 20)2.

Ceska posta Security, s.r.o. 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Share (in %) 100.00% 100.00% _
(In CZK millions) (In CZK millions)

Total assets 49 41 -

Equiry 13 (16)

Profiv(loss) tor the period 29 16

Acquisition cost of interest 7 7

Inirinsic value of interest 13

The acquisition cost of interest as at 31 December 2017 is final. Due to the negative EBITDA of the CIT
division for the year 2013, 2014 and 2015, the Company did not transfer any additional payment of the
purchase price in 2014, 2015 and 2016.

The Company provided this company with a general credit line totaling CZK 35 million. As at 31 December
2017, Ceskd posta Security. s.r.o., drew an amount of CZK 9 million. Information concerning interest on the
loan 1s disclosed in subsection 15.2.2.22 — Related party transactions.

Financial information about these companies was obtained from the audited financial statements of each
company.

The intrinsic value of shares / interest states the Company’s share in the equity capital of the controlled
company as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, respectively.

Other long-term securities and investments as at 31 December 2017 comprise government bonds issued by
Ministry of Finance of the Czech Republic maturing in 2023, available-for-sale investments, valued at fair
value of CZK 217 million as at 31 December 2017 (as at 31 December 2016: CZK 219 million).

15.2.2.5 Inventories

The fair value of obsolete and slow-moving inventory is reduced to the selling price through the allowance
account (see subsection 15.2.2.8 — Allowances).

15.2.2.6 Receivables

As at 3] December 2017 and 31 December 2016, receivables due after more than S years amounted to

CZK 1 million and CZK 2 million, respectively, and outstanding overdue receivables amounted to CZK 414 -
milliop and CZK 309 million, respectively. Outstanding overdue receivables are not secured. The Company

wrote off irrecoverable receivables of CZK 16 million and CZK 30 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively

due to cancellation of bankruptcy proceedings, unsatisfying the claims in bankruptcy proceedings, etc.

Advances for income tax of CZK 55 million paid by the Company as at 31 December 2017 (as at
31 December 2016: CZK 48 million) are netied off with the provision for income tax of CZK | million as at

31 December 2017 (as at 31 December 2016: CZK 22 miliion).
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Receivables from related parties are described in subsection 15.2.2.22 — Related party transactions. The
estimated receivables primarily comprise transactions related to international posial operations; balances of
these transactions as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 20)6 amounted to CZK 710 million and

CZK 933 million, respectively. Operating records on incoming mail not yet confirmed by individual postal
offices were recorded as estimated receivables with the double entry in Sales of own products and services.
based on operating statistics. As at 31 December 2017, the compensation ot net costs of providing basic
postal services is included in estimated receivables as follows: a portion of CZK 1,300 million was
recognized in short-term receivables and CZK 500 million was recognized in long-term receivables; as at
31 December 2016, CZK 1.300 million were recognized in long-term receivables (see subsection 15.2.2.7
Net Costs of Universal Service.

15.2.2.7 Net Costs of Universal Service

The Company as a postal license holder, as defined by Section 2] paragraph 2 of the Postal Services Act, is
obliged to ensure the universal availability of basic services listed in Section 3 paragraph | of the Postal
Services Act in the whole territory of the Czech Republic (ie. Postal services obligation). The Company is
obliged to fulfill the postal services obligation (Section 33 paragraph | point a) of the Postal Services Act),
in accordance with the basic quality requirements set out in Decree no. 464/2012 Coll., of 1 7 December
2012, establishing specifications for each basic service and basic quality requirements for their provision.

If, due to the obligation of providing basic services the postal license holder incurs a net costs representing
an unfair financial burden for the postal license holder these costs are reimbursed in such a way as stipulated
by the Postal Services Act. The CTO's process of calculating the net cost of providing basic services is
further specified in Decree No. 466/20]2 Coll. of 17 December 2012 on the procedure of the Czech
Telecommunication Office (CTO) when calculating the net cost of fulfilling obligations to provide basic
services.

According to a mechanism introduced by the Postal Services Act amendment, which entered into force on

1 January 2013, net costs representing an unfair financial burden should be funded through the account for
financing of net costs (the so called compensation fund) to which, under the Act, individual postal operators
should contribute according to their share on the postal services market. The Company should thus be
compensated for the net cost to the amount corresponding to the proportion of the market shares of other
entities operating in the postal services market. The determination of the group of mandatory contributors to
the compensation fund along with the amount of their contnbution crucial for the final amount of
compensation for the years 2013 and 2014, which is the responsibility of CTQ, have not been determined.

Effective from I January 2016 in accordance with Act No. 319/2015, Coll. amending Act No. 29/2000 Coll.,
on Postal Services and amending certain other acts (Postal Services Act). as amended, and Act No. 77/1997
Coll., on State Enterprise, as amended, the change in the method of financing net costs for the periods
following the 2015 calendar year came into effect. The previous method of financing net costs through the
compensation fund was replaced by a payment from the state budget in the amount of the net cost for
providing basic services verified by CTO, however, no more than: for the year 2015 CZK 700 mitlion; for
the year 2016 CZK 600 million; for 2017 and subsequent years CZK 500 million. Other net expenses are not
considered to be an unfair financial burden. The actual method of determining the net cost of basic services
has not been affected by the change in the Jaw.

Following the adoption of Act No. 319/2015 Coll., a pre-notification process of the method for compensating
the net cost of providing basic services for the years 2015-2017 to the European Commission has been
initiated in line with EU law. The period under review has been subsequently extended to the years 2013 and
20)4 as well. In July 2016, resulting from the preliminary investigation of the compensatjon fund regime

in the years 2013 to 2014, the European Commission raised several observations, inter alia, questioning the
compliance of the arrangements for financing the net costs for both vears through the compensation fund set
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out in the Postal Services Act with EU law, and came up with the recommendation that the compensation
fund should be canceled.

On 12 October 2016, following the European Commission investigation, the Czech government
acknowledged in its resolution the impossibility of applying the Act on the postal services where it relates to
financing of net costs representing an unfair financial burden through the compensation fund and it asked the
Minister of Industry and Trade together with Minister of Interior, st Deputy Prime Minister for the
Economy, and Minister of Finance to draft a proposal on how to prevent potential damage and minimize the
risks associated with the decision of not applying the provisions of the Postal Services Act on the years 2013
and 2014, on the basis of which the net cost of providing basic services representing an unfair financial
burden should be paid to the postal license holder, i.e. CP through a compensation fund.

Following the Government resolution of 22 March 2017, the Ministry of Industry and Trade prepared a draft
amendment of the Postal Services Act. The draft addresses financing of the net costs incurred by the postal
license holder, 1.e. CP in providing basic services for the years 2013 and 2014 due to abandoning the net cost
financing through the compensation fund and replacing the mechanism with a payment from the state
budget. According to the draft amendment, CP should be reimbursed the net costs totaling CZK 800 million
in three stages: CZK 200 million in 2018, CZK 300 millicn in 2019 and CZK 300 million in 2020.

On 19 February 2018, the European Commission concluded, based on an assessment of the prior notification
of the compensation payment for the provision of universal postal services (compensation for the net costs of
providing basic services) for the period of 2013 to 2017 along with the supporting documents, that the
compensations granted to CP for the provision of universal postal services (compensation for the net costs of
providing basic services from the state budget) for the period 2013-2017 up to a maximum of CZK 2.6
billion constituted state aid compatible with the internal market under the Services of General Economic
Interest framework from 2012. which sets out the conditions to be met by the aid in order to comply with
Article 106 (2) of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union (TFEU).

As for the years 2013 and 2014, the Company’s management considers the above mentioned steps as an
increased security for the compensatjon payment. However, the actual payment of CZK 800 million still
depends on the successful completion of the legislative process as well as the adoption of the respective
amendment to the Postal Services Act. The proposal for amending Jegislation is currently in the inter-
departmental comment procedure as individual comments are being dealt with. At the same time, if there
was no change in legislation, the activation of the compensation fund would represent, in the light of the
foregoing, an uniawful public aid under EU law, and it is therefore de jure excluded. For these reasons, the
Company’s management decided not to recognize the entitlement for the years 2013 and 2014 ip the books.

As for the years 2015 and 2016, in prior years management decided to post estimated receivables in the
amount equal to the upper limit allowable by law, i.e. CZK 700 million and CZK 600 million for 2015 and
2016, respectively. In March 2018, CTO verified the amount of net costs for providing basic services
representing an unfair financial burden for 2015 in the amount of CZK 700 mjllion. In March 2018, CTO
verified the amount of net costs for providing basic services representing an unfair financial burden for 2016
in the amount of CZK 600 million, thus confimming the correctness of the recognized amounts.

As a part of the profit and loss statement, the revenue was presented on a separate line [11.3.1. Compensation
for net costs of the provision of basic postal services within other operating income. The compensation for
the net costs of the provision of basic postal services for the years 2015 and 2016 was presented within long-
term receivables under the line item C.J1.1.5.3. in the balance sheet. On 14 March 2018, CTO’s decision
defining amount of net costs representing unfair financial burden for years 2015 and 2016 become de jure
effective. With respect to the fact that in accordance with section 34d of Postal Services Act is CTO
responsible for providing net costs representing unfair financial burden in 30 days subsequent to the legally
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binding decision, the asset was reclassified as at 31 December 2017 as short-term and reported within short-
term receivables under the line item C.J1.2.4.5.

As for 2017, the Company’s management decided to post an estimated receivable in the amount equal to the
upper limit allowable by law, i.e. CZK 500 million. As a part of the profit and loss statement, the revenue
was presented on a separate tine 11.3.1. Compensation for net costs of the provision of basic postal services
within other operating income. With regard to the estimated payment date, the estimated receivable was
classified as long-term and is presented within long-term receivables under C.I1.1.5.3.

15.2.2.8 Allowances

Allowances reflect a temporary decrease in the value of assets (disclosed in subsections 15.2.2.4 — Fixed
assets, 15.2.2.5 — Inventories and 15.2.2.6 — Receivables).

Allowances Balance

. Balance as Balancc as at
against: . Reversal/ as at .

at 30 June Additions Additions Reversal / use 2t December
use 31 Decembe
. 2016 2017

(In CZK milligns) r2016
Intangible fixed assets 20 1 ) 20 0 ) 18
Tangible fixed asscts 64 0 8 40 0 (2) 38
L.ong-term financial 7 0O 0 7 0 7N 0
invesiments
Inventory 62 8 N 69 14 (10) 73
Receivables — other 149 KL (1) 146 24 (35) 125
Tota) tax non- 102 47 (67) 282 38 (56) 264
deductiblc allowances
Receivables — legal 35 26 (29) 32 10 (10) 32
Total tax deductible is 26 (29) 32 10 (10) 32
allowances
Total 337 73 (96) 314 48 (66) 296

Legal allowances are created pursuant to the Act No. 593/1992 Coll., on Provisions, as amended and are
deductible for 1ax purposes; other allowances are not deductible {or tax purposes.

15.2.2.9 Short-term Financial Assets and Cash

The main bank used by the Company is Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s., in which the Company has
two cash-pooling sets of accounts, a set of current accounts and a set of accounts with entrusted resources.
An overdraft enabling the Company to have a negative balance is agreed for the set of accounts with both the
Company's own and entrusted resources (see subsection 15.2.2.14 — Bank loans and borrowings).

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Company did not have short-term securities nor shares.

15.2.2.10 Equity

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, share capital amounted to CZK 3,588 million without
change.

Other capital funds mainly comprise contributions from profit or gifts received.

The revaluation differences from the revaluation of assets and liabiljties incJude the revaluation of availabje-
for-sale securities at fair value.
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The reserve fund has been created gradually up to the level of 0% of share capital.

Other funds from profit include the culwral and social fund.

Profit for the period of six months ended 31 December 2016 was distributed on 2 May 2017 in accordance
with the founder’s approval. The amount of CZK 170 million was transferred to the cultural and social fund;
CZK 79 million was used from other capital funds.

The Company is part of the whole of the government consolidation.

15.2.2.11 Provisions

Balance as at Balance as at

Balance ay at Reversal / 31 December 31 December
(In CZK millions) 30 June 2016 Additions use 2016 Additions Reversal / use 2017
Social and health 118 128 (108) 138 78 (122) 94
insurance
Accrued vacation 148 17 (119) 46 11 0 s7
Provision for 4R 40 (47) 41 6& A1) 68
severance pay incl,
compelition clauses
Non-claimable 168 265 (168) 265 125 (265) 125
component of
salariey
Other 238 45 (72) 211 5l (35) 227
Total tax non- 720 495 (514) 701 333 (463) S
deductible
provisions
Total 720 495 (S14)* 701 333 (463) S71

") The amaunt includes the eifect of spln-off totating CZK (96) million,

The provision for social and health insurance is created mainly for contributions to the unpaid part of
contracted wages, profit-related bonuses, accrued vacation and other salary benefits.

A provision for the compensation for severance pay and competition clauses was created in connection with
the gradual reduction in the number of employees in subsequent years, which has been approved by the
Company’s management and then communicated to the employees and trade unions.

Other provisions were primarily created to cover risks known as at 31 December 2017 and probable loss
from ongoing litigations and out-of-court disputes and related obligations.

The Company also created a provision for the non-claimable component of salaries which is composed of
expected extraordinary wage bonuses estimated by the Director General and an additional subjective
component of salaries including individual agreed salary bonuses.
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15.2.2.12 Long-term liabilities

Long-term liabilities are represented by the deferred tax liability as at 31 December 2017 and 3! December
2016, which 1s described in subsection 15.2.2,16 — Income tax and the amounts of trade payables, which
bave maturity longer than one year as at the balance sheet date, were CZK 11 million and CZK 16 million
as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, respectively. These are mainly part of liabilities conceming
retentions — given items are recognized on the line C.1.4 Trade payables.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Company did not recognize liabilities that are due after
more than 5 years.

15.2.2.13 Current liabilities

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Company had overdue current payables totaling
CZK 17 milhon and CZK 13 million, respectively.

The Company had no current or long-term liabilities bearing a security or lien in favor of a creditor as at
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

Liabilities to related parties are described in subsection 15.2.2.22 — Related party transactions.

Estimated payables particularly consist of costs associated with international postal operations, where
balances of transactions amounted to CZK 758 million and CZK 1,027 million as at 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016, respectively. In addition, estimated payables included quantity discounts, uninvoiced
operating deliveries of services and energy. and estimated staff bonuses.

Trade payables decreased on a year-on-year basis mainly due to entrusted resources (see subsection
Payables in respect of social insurance and health insurance amounted to CZK 337 million and CZK 350

million as at 31 December 2017 and 3! December 2016, respectively.

These payables comprise unpaid wages for December 2017 and 2016. which were paid at the beginning of
2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Company did not record any unpaid tax liabilities payable to the relevant tax authority as at
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

15.2.2,14 Bank loans and borrowings

15.2.2.14.1 Denominated in CZK

Overall limit 31 December 2017 A1 December 2016
Bank Terms/ Conditions Account (Jn CZK millions) (In CZK millions) (In CZK millions)
. Global credit line eflective Own
CSOB, a.5. o 100 0 0
Eflective interest rate: 0.44% reSOUrees
Global credit ling effective Own
CSOB, as* SoreRn e 1.000 0 0
EfTective inlerest rate: 0.53% resources
Global credit line effective Entrusted
C¢SOB. a.s. L 1,600 33 0
Effective interest rate: 0.23% resourees
") 1§ can be drawn in forelgn ¢urrenty |n the corresponding amownt.
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The overdraft on the own funds account from Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s., is to offset short-term
cash-tflow fluctuations and as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was not used.

A multi-purpose credit line from Ceskoslovenské obchodni banka, a.s., allows for overdrafts, short-term
loans on the financial market, documentary letters of credit and different types of guarantees. As at

31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Joan was not used. The multi-purpose credit line of CZK 600
million was terminated in 2/2017 and replaced by the multi-purpose credit line totaling CZK 1,000 million.

The overdraft on the entrusted resources account from Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s., serves to
optimize financial liquidity to ensure the provision of Company’s services. This overdraft is secured by
pledge on the Company’s receivables from Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s., created under a Contract
for the provision of services to Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s., by the Company. The Company used
CZK 33 million as at 31 December 2017; As at 31 December 2016, the overdraft from Ceskoslovenska
obchodni banka, a.s., was not used.

The Company complies with all the terms and conditions of the loan agreements.

15.2.2.14.2 Denominated in EUR

Overall limit 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
(In EUR milliong) (In EUR (tn CZK {In EUR (in CZK
Bank Terms/ Conditions millions) millions) millions) millions)
CSOB, a.s. Global credit line effective
EURIBOR 3months 5 1.4 33 1.2 34

+ 0.1% p.a. — entrusted resources
The above-mentioned bank overdraft is exclusively used for cash operations of the banking services
provided at selected post-office counters in EUR.

The Company complies with all the terms and conditions of the loan agreements.

15.2.2.15 Accruals and Deferred Income

Deferred income primarily includes prepaid postal fees for offsetting remote credit machines.

15.2.2.16 Income Tax

Analysis of the income tax expense is as follows:

Year 2017 Period of 6 months ended
(In CZK miltions) 31 December 2016
Current tax expense 1 22
Delerred tax R (10)
Adjustment of prior vear tax expense based on finat CIT retum 4 ()
Total tax expense 13 5
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The Company quantified tax due as follows:

Year 2017 Period of 6 months cuded

(In CZX millions) 31 December 2016
Profit before (ax 91 2
Non-taxable revenues (19) (56)
Difference between book and tax depreciation 108 n
‘Tax non-deductibic expenses and change in allowances and provisions ) 126
Of which:
- thangc in allowances (18) (20)
- change in provisions (130) 77
- other (e.g. previous prepaid expenses, representalion expenses, shortages

and losses) 37 69
Gifts 0 )
Deduction 1o support (rining 1 0
Taxablc income 68 143
Income 1ax rate 19% (9%
Calculated income tax 13 27
Tax reliel (persons with disability or partial disability) (12) (&)
Tax due | 22
Income lax expense from ordinary activitics | 22

The Company calculated the deferred tax asset / (hability) using the 19% tax rate (for both periods, i.e. as at
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016) and quantified as {follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Deferred  Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax
Basc 11X asset liabilicy Base asset liabiliry
(In CZK (In CZK (In CZK (Jn CZK (In CZK (In CZK
Deferred tax items millions) millions) milliony) millions) millions) millions)
DilYerence hetween net book value off
{ixcd assets for accounting and lax
purposes (2.386) 0 (433) (2.496) 0 (474)
Allowances 264 30 0 282 54 0
Other provisions 57 10% 0 701 133 0
Total (1.551) 158 (353) (1,513) 187 (474)
Net deferred tax liability (295) (287)

15.2.2.17 Leases

The Company leases fixed assets, which are not recognized in the balance sheet accounts (see subsection
15.2.2.3.14 — Leases and subsection 15.2.2.18 — Commitments and Contingencies).

The assets leased by the Company in the form of operational leases amounted to CZK 310 million and
CZK 145 million as at 31 Decemnber 2017 and 31 December 2016, respectively. The buildings leased by the
Company amounted to CZK 229 million and CZK 116 million as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016, respectively.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Company did not have any finance leases.

15.2.2.18 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company recognizes particularly stamps, road toll vignettes and lottery tickets, the nature of which is
recognized as vaiuables (these items are recognized below in nominal value) in its operational evidence as at
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. Furthermore, the Company recognized low-value assets

Ceska podta, 5.p., registered office. Politickyeh vizal 0094, 225 99 Praha 1. Bus. Reg. No.: 471 14 933 Page 4R/RS
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in operating evidence and leased assets in off-balance sheet evidence (recognized in acquisition costs), which
is not recognized in the balance sheet:

(In CZK millions)

3} December 2017

31 December 2016

Valuables incl. stamps and lotiery Gickets

Road (oll vignettes

Leased assets — operational lease

Securities
Low-value tangible asscts
Low-value intangible assets

14,409
2,955
1672

40
2282
63

15,491
1,528
1468

40
237%
64

The structure of the contracted future obligations from operating leases and renta! of buildings is presented

in the table below (in CZK millions):

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Due withjn 1 vear 394 369
Duc berween 1 to S years 836 649
Duc afier § vears 61 72
Total 1.291 1,090
Received and provided bank guarantees for the Company, which are drawn under the framework
agreements, on the provision of financial services, as at 31 December 2017 were as follows:
Type of Amount
provided Guarantor Creditor Subject Valid until (In CZK
guarantee millions)
Payment Ceskoslovenska obchodni Customs dircctoratc for the Custom debt indefinite 4
banka. a.s. South Bohemian Region
Payment( Ceshoslovenska obchodni General Directorate for Llectronic fee system a1’ 0172019 9
hanka. a.s. National Roads and
Muotorways of the Crech
Republic
Payment Ceskoslovenskd obchodni Ministry of Intcrior NIS 128 31/12/2018 12
banka. a.s.
Payment Ceskoslovenskd abchodni State Fund for Transport Distribution and sale of 16/ 03/ 2018 75
panka. a.s. Infrastruceure (SFDI) vignettes for the year 2016
Payment Ceskoslovenska obchodni State Fund for Transpon Distribution and sale of 16/ 03/ 2019 390
banka, a.s. Infrastructure (SFDI) vignettes for the year 2017
Payment Ceskoslovenska obchodni CONTERA Rental agreement 03/ 08/ 2018 |
banka. a.s. Investment Y. s.r.o.
Payment Ceskoslovenska obchodni Prologis CR LX s.r.o Rental agreement 19/01/2020 D)
baaka. a.s.
493
Type of Amount
received (n CZK
guaraniee Guarantor Debtor Subject Valid until millions)
Payment Komerdni banka, a.s. SILBA-Elstav s.r.o. Action-DEPO Plzei 72 11/04/201% |
Payment Komereni banka. a.s. TRAWEKO 96 s.r.o. Action-DEPO Picrov 70 07:01/2018 |
Pavment Ceskoslovenska obchodni VAHOSTAV-SK, as. Action-DEPO Benesov 70 15/02/2018 1
banka, a.s.
Payment Ceskoslovenska obchodni Polabskd stavebni CZ, s.r.o. Action-DEPO Ceska Lipa 70 18/ 04/ 2018 2
banka, a.5.
Pavment Ceskoslovenska obehodni PSG-Intemational a.s. Action-dislocation of (he post 28/ 08/ 2018 I
banka. a.s. office Praha 30 to SPU
Malcsice
Payment Ceska spotitelna, a.s. Synet s.r.o. Aclion - DEPO Krom&tiz 14/ 08/ 2018 i
Pavment Komeréni banka, a.s. SAN-IV 5.r.0. Action-DEPO Sumpcrk 70 03/06/ 2018 1
Pavment UniCredit Bank. a.s. Kappenberger + Braun, Action - DEPO Jihlava 70 05/10/ 2018 ]
Elektro-Technik spol s. ro.
Payment Komertni banka, a.». ABC Chomutov spol. s r.o. Action - SPU Usti nad 31708/ 2018 1
Labem
Payment Ceskoslovenska obchodni IMOS Brng, a.s. Action - insulation: Praguc 3 3112/ 2018 4
banka a.s. OiZanska
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Payment Raificisenbank, a.s. SKD Prumstav-stavby, a.s. Action - SPU Usti - 03/02/2019 4
completion

Payment UniCreditBank, a. s. PSG International a.s. Action - reconstruction 03/ 06/2019 1
SPU+DEPQ Ostrava 7!

Payment Oberbank AG EDIKT, a. s. Action - SPU Ostrava+DEPO 31/07/ 2019 5
Ostrava 71 - complclion and
reconstruction

Payment Komeréni banka ZIPP Brno, s.r.o. Action - reconstruction of 15/04/ 202) 2
post office Bmo 100

Payment soB OHL 2S. a . Action - SPU Ceské 27/09/ 2021 5
Budéjovice - new building

31

15.2.2.19 Contingent Liabilities

The management of the Company is not aware of any other significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2017.

15.2.2.20 Revenues and Other Operating Income

Breakdown of revenues and other operating income from the Company's activities:

Yeur 2017 Pcriod of 6 monthy ended 31 December 2016
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
o CZK (In CZK (In CZK (In CZK (In CZK (In CZK
millions) milliony) millions) millions) milliony) millions)
Revenue from postal operations 12,116 1.837 13,953 6.124 1.018 7.142
Revenue from provision ol
intermediary services 2377 U 2577 1318 0 1318
Revenue from clectronic semvices 362 0 362 155 0 155
Revenue from the sale of goods 340 0 340 113 0 113
Revenues from data mailboxes 517 0 S17 257 0 2587
Toi1al revenues 15912 1.837 17.749 7967 1018 8985
Other operating income 1118 0 1R 778 0 778
Total revenues and other
operating incomc 17.030 1.837 18.867 8.745 1018 9.763

In 2017 and in the period ended 31 December 2016, the Company did not receive subsidies for operating
purposes.

15.2.2.29 Employees

Breakdown of staff costs is as follows:

Year 2017 Period of 6 months ended 31 December
2016
Of which: Of which:
Company's Company's

Total personnel

management and
Director General

Total personnel

management and
Director Genera)

Avcerage adjusted number of emplovees 29,612 26 29,801 26
(In CZK millions)

Wages and salanes 9283 73 4,609 29
Social security and health insurance 3,080 13 1.506 4
Social costs 339 [ 170 0
Total siafl costs 12,702 86 6285 33

Wages and salaries of the Company’s management and Supervisory Board also include severance pay and

anti-competitive clause.
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15.2.2.22 Related Party Transactions

members of the Company's statutory and supervisory bodies and the Company's management did not
receive any loans, guarantees, advance payments or other benefits besides the collective agreement, they did
however have access to Company cars that are made available by management for both business and private
purposes. During the year, the Company executed several transactions with related parties within its ordinary
business activities.

The transactions realized during 2017 and during the period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016, and the
related receivables from and liabilities to related parties are as follows:

Revenues Expenses Receivables Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017 (Jn CZK (In CZK (In CZK (In CZK
millions) millions) millions) millions)

Subsidiaries
Pastovni tiskdrna ¢enin Praha a.s. 0 22 0 6
Ceska podia Security, a.r.0. 2 173 12 20
Other related partics
Crech Television and Radio 238 1 1 13
Government ministries 689 0 55 5
Crech Social Security Administration 424 222 0 2.002
Municipal and local authorities 347 108 14 288
CD Cargo | a 0 4
Charles University in Praguc 9 0 0 2
Water and sewage systems Hodonin 2 0 3
National Agency for Communications and Information Technology 13 4 3 |
Total 1,722 2.600 94 2359

Revenues Expenses Receivables Liabilities
Period of 6 months ended (In CZK (In CZK (In CZK (In CZK
31 December 2016 millions) millions) millions) millions)
Subsidiaries
Postovni tiskama cenin Praha a.s. 0 12 0 4
Ceski posta Seeutity, s.r.0. 2 Rl 35 20
Other related parties
Czech Television and Radio 118 0 0 10
Government ministies 282 0 53 19
Czech Social Security Administration 214 1.086 0 2073
Municipal and local authorities 172 27 7 230
D Cargo 0 36 ) S
Charles University in Prague 4 0 0 2
Ceské drahy 3 | | |
Water and sewage systems Hodonin | 0 0 2
National Agency for Communications and Information Technology 5 2 3 0
Total 801 1,258 99 2366

Receivables / revenues with Podtovni tiskdmé cenin Praha a.s. relate mainly to the provision of rent and
services; liabilities / costs relate mainly to the purchase / consumption of material.

Receivables from Ceska poita Security, s.r.o., relate mainly to the loan provided to the compauny. The
interest rate corresponds to the weighted average interest rate for the appreciation of own funds retroactively
for the corresponding months in which the funds were granted.
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15.2.2.23 Fees Paid and Payable to the Audit Company

Information on the fees paid and payable to the audit company is included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.

15.2.2.24 Entrusted Resources

The entrusted resources analysis as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is as follows:

(In CZK millions) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
ASSETS

Short-term receivables 140 133
Cash 3.399 3.207
Cash at bank 337 607
Toial gssets 3.876 3.947
(In CZK milliony) 31 December 2017 3) December 2016
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities 3.808 3913
Short-term bank loans 68 34
Total liabilities and equity 3876 3.947

Short-term receivables consist primarily of short-term receivables for agency services (e.g. card transactions,
cheque transactions, etc.) provided to CSOB, a.s.

At the end of 2017, the Company received advance payments from Ceské sprava socidlniho zabezpeéeni
in the amount of CZK 1,600 million for 2018 pension payments. As at 31 December 2016, the Company
received advance payments totaling CZK 1,695 million for pension payments to be paid in January 2017.

All these labilities in respect of entrusted resources were within the maturity period.

15.2.2.25 Cash-flow Statement

As at 3] December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Company did not consider the used overdraft facilities
as cash equivatents for the purpose of the cash-flow statement (see subsection 15.2.2.14 — Bank loans and
overdrafts).

Cash and cash equivalents disclosed in the cash-flow statement can be analyzed as follows:

(In CZK nmniillions) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Cash on hand 4368 4,284
Cash at bank R&4 2,045
Cash equivalents from short-term securilies and invesunents 0 50
Cash and cash equivalents 5252 6377

15.2.2.26 Subsequent Events

The Company will calculate net costs for the provision of basic services for the accounting period 20} 7 and
will ask CTO for the reimbursement of such costs that represent unfair financial burden for the Company as
a postal license holder. The deadline for submission is 31 August 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, Marek Jansky quit the position of the Chiet Director of Finance Division.

Onp 1 January 2018, Luka$ Svoboda was appointed the Chief Director of Finance Division.
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On 30 January 2018, Pavel Chyla was appointed the Deputy Director General.
On 28 February 2018, Martin Elkan was recalied from the Director General position.

Effective from 1 March 2018, Vit Bukvic was entrusted with the management of Ceska posta, s.p., based on
the Resolution of DG 16/2018.

On 2 March 2018, Jifi Linert was appointed the Chief Director of Postal Operations and Logistics Division.

On 5 March 2018, Ceska posta received a decision on determining the net costs of providing basic services
for 2015 and 2016 from CTO ~ see subsection 15.2.2.7 — Net Costs of Universal Service for more details.

No other material events have occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of preparation of the

ordinary financial statements that would have a material impact on the ordinary financial statements for the
accounting period 2017,

23 March 2018

Ing. Vit Bukvic, charged ;vith managing Ceské posta, s.p.
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15.3 Consolidated Financial Statements including Report of the Independent
Auditor

Report of the Independent Auditor to Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Translation of a report originally issued in Czech - see Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Founder of Ceskd posta, s.p.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ceskad podta, s.p. (the Company)
and its subsidiaries (the Group) prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
inthe Czech Republic, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated income  statement,  consolidated statement of changes in  equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
For details of the Group, see Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and Auditing Standards of the Chamber
of Auditors of the Czech Republic. which are International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as amended
by the related application clauses. Our responsibilities under this law and regulation are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted
by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matters

The prior year consolidated financial statements of Ceskd poita, s.p. were audited by another auditor
whose report dated 17 March 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

Other Information

In compliance with Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, the other information comprises the information
included in the Consolidated Annual Report other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's
report thereon. The Statutory Body of the Company is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information. In connection
with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. In addition, we assess whether the other information has been prepared, in all material respects,
in accordance with applicable law or regulation, in particular, whether the other information complies
with law or requlation in terms of formal requirements and procedure for preparing the other information
in the context of materiality, i.e. whether any non-compliance with these requirements could influence
judgments made on the basis of the other information.
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Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to assess if, we report that:
« The other information describing the facts that are also presented in the consolidated financial
statements is, in all material respects, consistent with the consolidated financial statements; and

¢ The other information is prepared in compliance with applicable law or regulation.

In addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the knowledge and understanding of the Group obtained
in the audit, on whether the other information contains any material misstatement. Based
on the procedures we have performed on the other information obtained, we have not identified
any material misstatement.

Responsibilities of the Company’s Statulory Body and the Supervisory Board for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Statutory Body is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic and for such
internal control as the Statutory Body determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Statotory Body is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Statutory Body either intends
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to go so.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, ang {o issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with above regulations will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the above law or regulation, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient ang appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraod is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Statutory 8ody.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Statutory Body's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disciosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
ungerlying transactions and events in 3 manner thal achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board regarding., among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.
License No. 401

Brrns, Bty fon
Roman Hauptfleisch, Auditor
License No. 2009

23 March 2018
Pragque, Czech Republic
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Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(in millions Czech crowns)
Roforence ASSETS 31.12. 2017 31.12 2016
Gross Provision Net Net
a b 1 2 3 4

TOTAL ASSETS 34,149 (13,927) 20,222 20,838
B. Fixed assots 23,391 (13,686) 9,705 9,831
B. L Intangible fixed assets 1,987 (1,623) 364 346
Bl 2, Royalties 1,858 (1,558) 302 238
8 | 21 Software | 1,855 (1,554) 301 237
8 | 2.2 Othet royaltes 3 {2) 1 1
8 | 4, | Other intangibie fixed assets 68 {67) 1 3
s s, r::::;ag::ld and intang|blo fixed agsets (n the course of 61 0 61 108
! B 5.2 Intangible fixed assats in the course of construction 61 1] 81 105
B. I Tangible fixed assots 21,189 (12,064) 9,125 9,268
B. 1 1. Land and constructions 12,543 (5484) 7,068 7,142
B. 1.1, Land 851 a | 851 867
B 12 Consyruchons 14,692 (5.484) | 6.208 8.275
8. I 2. Equipment 8,268 6,573y | 1,658 1,708
B. N 4. Othor tangiblo fixod assats 3 0 | 5 | Py
B I & ::::tr::zr:ld and tangible fixod assots in the course of 373 ey | 266 ]I 444
Bl 52 Tangible fixed assets in the course of eonstruction a7 N 366 414
B. I Long-term investments 217 0 217 219
B. W 5 Other Iong-term investments in securities 217 217 219

B. V. Positive consclidation difference 7 0 7 7d 5]
B. V. Negati lidation diffi (9) 1 (8) (8}
c Current asseots 10,638 (241) 10,397 10,935
C. L Inventories 281 (74) 207 334
c | 1 Raw materials 221 (69) 152 166
[*NEN 2 Weork 1n progress and semi-finished products 2 0 2 2
C | 3. Finishod goods and goods for resale 58 {5) 63 166
Gl 3.2, Goods for rasale 58 (5) 53 186
Condl: Receivables 5,073 (167) 4,906 4,173
Chn e Long-term receivables 524 0 524 1,217
con 1.1, | Trade recevables 3 0 3 2
c. m 1.5 Recolvables - other 521 0 524 1315
c. | 1.5, 2. | Long-tarm agvances pad E) [¢) 5 B}
c. | 15 3. | Estimated receivables 500 0 500 1.300
[ 1l 1.5 4. | Other receivables 16 1] 16 10
(o | r Short-term receivables 4,549 (167) 4,382 2,856
Ci -l 2.1 Trade receivables 1.557 (82} 1475 1.319
of which entrustod respurce: 140 0 A0 13
C. M 24 Receivables - other 2,992 {85) 2,907 1,537
c. n 24 1 Recoivables from shareholders 21 (4) 17 20
c 2.4 3. | Taxes - recewasbles from the state 55 0 55 27
C N 24, 4 | Short-term advances paid 228 0 228 230
C 2.4 5. | Estimated receivablas 2,537 0o | 2.537 1,182
P | 24, 6. | Other receivadles 151 81y 70 78
Co L Short-term financial investments 0 0 0 50
c.oom 2 Other short-torm investments 0 1] 0 50
C. I Cash 5,284 0 5,284 6,378

|

L2 i

cC Vo1 Cash in hand 4,368 ] 4,368 4284 |
of which entrusted rosources 3.399 o 3.38¢ 3.207
c. M 2 Cash at bank 916 0 916 2,084
i of which omrusicd rosourees %7 1] 337 607
| D. Propay and di 120 0 120 72
D. 1. Prepaid expenses 118 Q 116 69
0. 2. [ Accrued income 4 0 4 3
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Ceska posta

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET - Liabilities and Equity (in millions Czech crowns)

Ceska posta 2017 Annual Report
Consolidated Financial Statements

a b
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 20,222 20,838
A, Equity 10,119 10,191
A I Share capital 3,588 3,588
A I 1, Share capital 3,588 3.588
A, 1. Share premium and capital ibuti 6,118 6,127
A 11, 2. Capltal contributions 6,118 6,127
A, It. 29, Other capital contributions 8,109 8.1)8
A ] 22, Assaets and liabilities revaluation 9 1"
A, i, Other reserves 37 76
A [0} 1 Other raserve (unds 359 359
A, ni. 2 Statutory and othevr reserves 18 17
A, . Retained earnings / Accumulated losses (62) (79)
A, W, 2 Accumulated fosses (62) (79
A V. Consolidated profit / (loss) for the current period 98 179
B, + C, Liabilities 9,576 10,065
B. Provisions 573 703
B. 4, Other provisions 573 703
C. Liabilities 9,003 9,362
C. I, Long-term liabilities 306 305
C ! 4, Trade payables 10 168
i 8. Deferred tax liability 206 289
c. 1l Short-term liabilities 8,697 9,057
C. Il 2 Liabilities due to financial institutions 68 34
o I 24
C. 0 3 Short-term advances received 783 479
I, 4 Trade payables 5,078 5,569
ol wiich entrusted rosd H08 3,873
c. 1] 8. Liabilitios - other 2,758 2,975
of which enzosted resources n
C. 0 83 Liabilibes (0 emptoyees 544 558
C. 1. 8.4 Liabilities for social security and health insurance 340 352
C. H 8.5 Taxes and slate subsidies payable 199 124
c I 86 Estimated payables 1,376 1,844
C 0. 8.7. Other habilities 298 296
D. Accruals and deferred income 486 540
D. 2 Deferred income 488 540 |
E Minority equity 41 42 B
E. 1. Minarity equity 16 16
E. I 2. Minority other capital funds inc). reserve fund 16 18
€ ) 3. Minonty (etslned earmngs 10 10
€. ) 4 Minonty profit for the current period (1) v}
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. Ceska posta
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(in millions Czech crowns)
- reference TEXT { Accounting period
3. 12, 2017 34.12. 2018
- | a b 1 2
1. Sales of progducts and services 17.448 18.026
If Sales of goods %0 | 257
A, Cost of sales 4,415 4,932
| A 1. Cost of goods sold 253 189
| A 2 Raw matenals and consumables used 1,284 1.280
A 3. Services 2.898 3.4B3
e. Changes 1 Inventones of Anished gooas and work in progress 1] ()
C. Own work capitalised {20) (18)
D. Staf costs 12,789 | 12,385
- D. 1, Wages and salanes 9,347 | 9.031
0. 2. | Socal secunly. heslth msurance and other social costs 3462 | 3.354
- D. 2.1, | Socual secunty aad health insurance costs 3101 | 3.004
D. 22 Othet soaal costs 341 I 350
E. Vatue adjusiments in opsratng acitwities 821 | 793
E. 1. Value adustments of fixed assets 828 [ 782
- E 1.4 Depreciation, amormsation and wrie off of fixad assets 832 | 809
E 1.2, | Povision for impainment of (ixad assets (4} 27
E 2. Provision for impairment of inventones 4 9
E. 3. Provision tor impairment of recesvabies (11 2
~ 1, Operaling income - other | 1117 1,092
i, 1 Sales of fixed assets 345 179
3. Other operayng income :I 772 | 913
31 Compensation for the nel ¢ost on providing basic postal services | 500 | 800
3.2. | Other operating income J 272 | 313
F. Operating expenses - othel | 813 | ¥ 066
F 1 j Net book value of fixed assers sold | 26 28
F 3 I Taxes and charges from operating activiies | 91 91
F 4 | Opersbng provisions ang complex prepald expenses (130) 172
£ 5 P&her operating expenses 826 777
t
- Clearing of positive consohidation differcnce 0 1
[ Clearing of negative consolidation difference (1) Q
- - Consolidated operating result 88 221
. Incoma from sales of iong-term invesiments - shates 2 2
v, 2 Income (rom sales of investments - other 2 2
VI, Interast and similar income 5 10
i v 2 Other interest and simifac incame 5 10
Wil Other finangial incoma 132 63
K. Other financial expenses 117 87
5 Consolidated financial result 22 (12)
. Consolidated net profit/ (loss) before taxation 110 209
&3 Tax on profit or loss 12 30
L 1 Tax on profit or loss - currem 5 61
| L 2 Tax on profit or loss - deferred 7 (3
” | o Net profit / (loss) after taxation 98 179
[ Minority profit / loss 99 179
| Minority share (1 0
I e Net profit { {loss) for the financial period 98 179
- Net turnover for the financial period 19,044 19,450
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Consolidated Cash-flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2017

(In CZK 2017 2016
millions)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,428 8,975
of which entristed resources l814 5.450
Net profit on ordinary activitics before tax 110 209
Al Adjustiments for non-cash movements: 367 710
A Amortization, depreciation of fixed assets and abolished investment projects 831 809
A2 Change in allowances and provisions with respect o operating aclivities (141) 59
A3 Profits from disposal of fixed assets 319) (151)
Al4 Net interest expense (+) and income (-) (5) (10)
AlS Adjustments for other non-cash movements 1 3
A Net cash flow from opcrating activities before tax and changes in working capital 477 919
A2 Chungee in non-cash components of working capital (948) (2,409)
A2 of which entrusied rexourcex (78) (1.636)
A2 Change in receivables and accrued income 17N (993)
A2/ of which entrusted resourves (N (46)
A2.2 Change in current liabililics and deferred income (553) (1.397)
A22 of which entrusted resourcex 1) (1.590)
A23 Change in inventorics 122 Qa7n
Ax¥ Net cash flow from operating activitics before tax (471) (1.490)
Ar* of which entrusted resources (78) (1.636)
A3 Interest paid 0 0
A4 Interesl received S 10
A5 Income tax overpayment (+)/ income tax on ordinary aclivities paid and additional taxes for
previous periods (-) (33) ({R9)
Ak Net cash flow from operating activities (499) (1.669)
of which entrusted resources (78) (1.636)
Cash flows from investing activities
B.1 Purchase of fixed assets (889) (839)
B.2 Proceeds from the salc of fixed assets 413 179
B+ Net eash flow from investing activities (476) (660)
Cash flows from financing activities
c. Change in long-term and current liabilitics falling within financial acuvigy 0 (2)
cz2 Change in equity (169) (166)
C2.1 Direct payments from funds (169) (166)
C3 Eflect of the spin-off 0 (50)
Cr*x Net cash flow from financing activitics (169) (218)
Net decrease (-} / inerease (+) in cash and cash equivalents (1,144) (2.547)
of which entrusted rexources (78) 1.636
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year 5284 6,428
Ceska posta, s.p.. registered office: Politickych vazih 909/4, 225 99 Praha 1, Bus. Rep. No.: 471 14 983 Pagc 61785
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2017

Entered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prapue, Emry No. A7565

Gain or loss
on Other
Other revaluation Legal funds Profit/ (loss) for
(In CZK Share capital of assets and reserve from Accumulated the period less
millions) capital funds liabilitics fund profit Joss minority interest Total
Balaoce as at
1 January 2016 3,588 6,293 11 359 16 (71) 233 10.429
Profit distribution 0 75 0 0 166 0 {233) 8
Use of funds 0 2) 0 0 (164) (8) 0 (174)
Gains or losses
tfrom revaluation
1o fair value 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Profit for the
period 0 ] 0 0 0 0 179 179
Effect of the
spin-off 0 (250) 0 0 ) 0 0 (251)
Balance as at
31 December
2016 3.588 6.J16 )1 158y 17 (79) 179 10,191
Profit distribution 0 0 0 0 170 0 (179) 9)
Use of funds 0 (@) 0 0 (169) 17 0 (159)
Gains or losscs
from revaluation
to fair value 0 0 (2) 0 0 0 0 2)
Protit for the
period 0 0 0 0 0 0 98 98
Balance as at
31 December
2017 3.588 6,09 9 159 18 (62) 98 10.119
Ceska podta, s.p.. registered office: Poliickyeh vazili 909/4. 224 99 Praha 1. Bus Reg. No., 471 14 983 Page 62/85
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15.3.2 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
15.3.2.1 General Information

15.3.2.1.1 Description of the Group

The Group comprises Ceska podta, s.p., the controlling entity, and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

Subsidiary Registered office Ownership interest

Poltovni tiskdarna cenin Praha, Ortenovo ndmest 542/16, Praha 7 - HoleSovice  51.03% (Ceskd poda, s.p.. owned 16.903 shares oul of

a.s. the total 33,124 shares with the nominal vajue of CZK |
thousand)
Ceska podta Security, s.r.0. Politickych véznt 909/4, Praha | 100.00%

Ceské posta, s.p. (“the Company™, “the Controlling entity” or “Ceska posta™) is a state-owned enterprise. It is
a legal entity conducting its business activities using assets of the Czech government under its own name and
on its own account. The founder of the Company is the Czech State. The Company was established

on | January 1993 and the founder was then represented by the Ministry of Transport and Communications
of the Czech Republic. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the role of the founder of the
Company under the government’s name was carried out by the Ministry of Interior of the Czech Republic.
As at 31 December 2017, the Company had its registered oftice at Politickych vézia 909/4, Prague 1, Czech
Republic. The Company’s identification number is 471 14 983 and it is registered in the Commercial
Register of the Municjpal Court in Prague, Section A. Insert No. 7565. Ceska posta is a business entity
pursuant to Act No. 77/1997 Coll., on State-Owned Enterprise, as amended.

The Company’s activities are regulated by the Czech Telecommunication Office (“*CTO™).
The main business activities of the Group are as follows:

provision of postal services,

provision of international postal services,

provision of services of central procurement for government (public) administration,
manufacturing and trading in the field of printing industry,

printing of postage stamps and vouchers, fee stamps and other valuable or protected printed matter,
printing of publicly traded securities as well as other securities pursuant to the Act on Securities,
security of property and persons,

road motor transport,

assembly, repairs, revision and testing of electrical equipment,

provision of technical services for the protection of property and persons.

The corporate bodies of the Company are the Director General and the Supervisory Board. The Director
General is the Company’s statutory body. -

The Company’s mission is to perform the function of public postal operator involving a duty to provide and ;
operate postal and basic postal services in accordance with Act No. 29/2000 Coll.. on Postal Services, as
amended (,.the Postal Services Act*). The Company holds a license to provide postal services in accordance

Ceskd podta. w.p., registered office: Politickych v&zhG 90974, 225 99 Pruhu 1. Rus. Reg. No.: 471 14 083 Pape 63/85
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with paragraph 19; the Company also holds the license in accordance with paragraph 21 of the Postal
Services Act. The postal license was granted to the Company unti) 31 December 2022.

The content of the postal license establishes the duty to secure the general availability of basic postal services
in the whole territory of the Czech Repubilic.

The rights and obligations of the posta] services and the postal license holder are covered by Title V of the
Postal Services Act. According to the law, the Company must annually publish and submit complete and
truthful information to CTO about the results of providing and securing basic services and an evaluation of
the fulfilment of the quality parameters. The method, form and content of published information are
determined by impJementing the legislation of CTO (decrees). Czech Telecommunication Office annually
publishes the summary report on the obligations fulfillment entrusted to the postal license holder.

15.3.2.2 Accounting Policies
The accounting policies and valuation methods applied by the Group during preparation of the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2017 were as follows:

15.3.2.2.1 Basis of Preparation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act
No. 563/1991 Coll. and related Decree No. 500/2002 Coll. and pursuant 1o the Czech Accounting Standards
for entrepreneurs applicable for 2017, and have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
disclosed below:.

Explanation Added for Translation into English

These financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles and standards generally
accepted in the Czech Republic. Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform with
generally accepted accounting principles and standards in the Czech Republic may not conform with
generally accepted accounting principles in other countries.

i. Consolidation System

To prepare the consolidated financial statements. the full consolidation was used.

Mutal transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between consolidated companies were
eliminated from the consolidated financial statements, along with unrealized losses on mutual transactions.

Profits from the sale of assets between the Group entities were also fully eliminated.
Financial statements of all companies included in consolidation were prepared as at 31 December 20]7.

For consolidation purposes, the major accounting policies were unified within the Group: these accounting
policies, applied by individual consolidated entities. are described below.

i, Consolidation Difference

A consolidation difference is the difference between the purchase price of shares and interests

in a consolidated entity and their valuation reflecting the shareholding of the Controlling entity in equity,
valued at fair value as at the date of acquisition. The date of acquisition is the day from which the
Controlling entity effectively exercises its influence.

Ceskd posta, s.p.. registered oftfice: Politickych vézin 909/4. 225 99 Praha {. Bus. Reg. No.: 471 14 983 Page 64/85
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In the case of the consolidatjon difference, a linear depreciation method has been set for 20 years whereas the
first depreciation is charged to its full extent in the year the consolidation difference appeared.
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15.3.2.2.2 Subsidiaries

For the purposes of consolidation, a subsidiary is a company over which the Controlling entity exercises
a controlling influence through:

direct or indirect enforcement of more than 50% of the voting rights in the subsidiary company, or
demonstrable control of operative and strategic policies, wherein the Controlling entity is also
a shareholder/partner in the given company.

15.3.2.2.3 Intangible fixed assets

Purchased intangible fixed assets are recorded at cost, which includes all costs related with its acquisition.

Intangible fixed assets with a unit cost exceeding CZK 40 thousand and estimated useful live longer than one
vear are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful Jife in accordance with the
Group's amortization plans, i.e. over 4 years, in exceptional cases, the useful life is set for longer period (e.g.
according to the useful life of the related equipment).

Intangible fixed assets with unit cost of less than CZK 40 thousand are expensed upon acquisition and only
carried in the operational evidence or off balance sheet.

The amortization plan is updated during the useful life of the intangible fixed assets based on the expected
useful life.

The cost limit for the capitalization of the technical improvements of intangible fixed assets is CZK 40
thousand. An allowance for impairment is created when the camrying value of an asset is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on expecied future
cash flows generated by the certain assct.

15.3.2.2.4 Tangible fixed assets

Acquired tangible fixed assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes all costs related with its
acquisition. The Group does not include loan interest in the acquisition cost of tangible fixed assets.

Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at their replacement cost and are recorded into other
capital funds. The replacement cost of these assets is based on expert opinion or on market prices of
comparable fixed assets in terms of their wear and tear and performance. The valuation of tangible fixed
assets is decreased by subsidies for the acquisition of assets.

The depreciation plan is updated during the useful life of the tangible fixed assets based on the expected
useful life.

An allowance for impairment is created when the carrying value of an asset is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount is deterrined based on expected future cash flows
generated by the certain asset.

An al]lowance is created mainly in cases of projects whose realization is uncertain or in cases of expected
sales if the expected sales price net of transaction cost is lower than the book value disclosed in the records.

Technical improvement expenses of tangible fixed assets increase the acquisition costs if their expenses
exceed the total amount of CZK 40 thousand and technical improvements are put into use in that year.
Ordinary repairs and maintenance expenses are expensed as incurred.
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Tangible fixed assets with a unit cost of less than CZK 40 thousand are treated as inventory and are expensed
upon consumption and are only carried in the operational record. The exceptions are selected low value
assets — selected information technology and postal technology, which is also considered as tangible fixed
assets. Tangible fixed assets with a unit cost exceeding CZK 40 thousand and selected low value assets with
an estimated useful life longer than one year are depreciated using the straight-line method over thejr
estimated useful lives of assets. The estimated useful lives of tangible assets are as follows:

Number of years

Buildings. halls and constructions 20-350
Plant, machinery and equipment 4-13
Vehicles 6-20
Furniture. fixmures and equipment 10 - 20
Handling cquipment 6-20
Computers and related cquipment 3-7
Cemtralized protection desk ("PCO™) s

15.3.2.2.5 Long-term investments

Long-term financial assets consist of other long-term securities and investments, which represent available-
for-sale securities.

The Group classifies securities and investments, other than investments in subsidiaries and associates, as
held-to-maturity or available-for-sale.

Investments with a fixed maturity that management has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity and are included in non-current assets, unless the date of maturity falls within
| 2 months of the balance sheet date.

Securities and investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold

in response to liquidity requirements, are classified as available-for-sale. These investments are included
in non-current assets unless management has the express intention of holding the investment for Jess than
12 months from the balance sheet date, in which case they are included in current assets. The Group
determines the form of securities and investments at the time of their acquisition and revalues them on

a regular basis as at the consolidated financial statements’ date.

All securities and investments are initially recorded at cost, including transaction costs. Held-to-maturity
securities are subsequently accounted for at amortized cost. Other investments are subsequently accounted
for at fair value. The fair value is determined as the market value of the securities as at the balance sheet
date. Measurement of non-traded securities is based on management estimates.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of trading instruments are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments are recognized as a movement in equity and recognized into the income
statement on realization or when permanently impajred.

An allowance for impairment is established for held-to-maturity investments when their carrying value
is greater than their estimated recoverable amount.

15.3.2.2.6 Inventory

Purchased inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable amount. Cost includes all costs related
with its acquisition (mainly transport costs, customs duty, etc.). The weighted average cost method is applied
for all disposals.
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An allowance is created for slow-moving and obsolete inventory based on an analysis of tumover and an
individual evaluation of inventories.

For long-term contracts, the carrying value of work-in-progress also includes the allocation of administrative
overheads. Subcontracted supplies received and other direct costs are expensed and simultaneously recorded
in work-in-progress against revenues. Subcontracted supplies are valued at cost. Work-in-progress is
derecognized once the respective revenues are recorded.

15.3.2.2.7 Receivables

Receivables are carried at their nominal value after allowance for doubtful accounts. An allowance against
doubtful receivables is created on the basis of an aging analysis and an individual evaluation of the credit
worthiness of the customers.

15.3.2.2.8 Short-term financial investments

Short-term financial assets consist of securities available for sale, Securities available for sale are securities
held for the purpose of effecting transactions on the public market in order to make a profit from price
fluctuations in the short-term, but with a maximum period of one year.

15.3.2.2.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, stamps and vouchers and cash in banks, including bank
overdrafis.

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that can be exchanged for a predictable amount of
cash and no significant changes of value over time are expected. Cash equivalents are deposits with

a maturity of less than 3 months from the date of acquisition and liquid debt securities traded in public
markets. Cash equivalents also include Entrusted resources — see subsection 15.3.2.2.10. - Entrusted
resources.

The Group prepared its consolidated cash-flow statement using the indirect method.

15.3.2.2.10 Entrusted resources

In some cases, the financial resources of third parties are temporarily entrusted to the Company in order to
perform specific transactions (services for clients of Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s. (hereinafter
“CSOB. a.5.”), collection of radio and television license fees, payment of pensions, collection of SIPO
payments, betting games, sale of stamps, vignettes, postal payment services, services for mobile operators,
customs declarations, etc.). These resources are recorded in a separate accounting group apart from the
Company’s own financial resources, and are disclosed on separate lines in the balance sheet. The Company
charges an agreed commission for performing the specific transactions, which is recognized within its own
resources using the accrual principle in the same period to which they relate.

15.3.2.2.11 Foreign currency transiation

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated and recorded at the rate of exchange ruling
as at the first day of the current calendar month as published by the Czech National Bank.

Cash, receivables and liabilities balances denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at the
exchange rate published by the Czech National Bank as at the balance sheet date. A}l exchange gains and
losses on cash, receivables and liabilities balances are recorded in the consolidated income statement.
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15.3.2.2.12 Equity

The Company’s financial position and funds are being managed in accordance with Act No. 77/1997 Coll.,
on State-Owned Enterprise, as amended. Pursuant to this Act, the share capital of the Company corresponds
to the business capital to which the Company has a title on its establishment. The share capital includes both
registered and non-registered capital in compliance with accounting legislation. Other capital funds are
created in accordance with the accounting standards for entrepreneurs.

In addition, the Company creates a reserve fund from profit, which was created gradually up to 10% of the
share capital.

The Company creates a cultural and social fund (“FKSP”). The creation and use of this fund is being
governed by Section 16 of Decree No. 114/2002 Coll., in connection with Section 3 of Decree No. 310/1995
Coll., on Cultural and Social Needs Fund, as amended (including changes under Decree No. 167/1997 Coll.
and 314/1999 Coll.) and the use of FKSP is governed by Section 4 to 10 of Decree No. 310/1995 Coll.

15.3.2.2.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

15.3.2.2.14 Employee benefits

The Group creates a provision for accrued vacation. The Group creates an estimated payable for rewards and
bonuses to employees who became entitled 1o payment as at the balance sheet date. In case of rewards and
bonuses to employees who are entitled for a payment after the current financial year-end day after meeting
specified criteria, the Company creates a provision on the current financial year-end day.

15.3.2.2.15 Loans

Long-term liabilities including loans and current liabilities including loans are carried at their nominal
values. Any portion of long-term debt, which is due within one year of the balance sheet date, is regarded as
short-term debt.

15.3.2.2.16 Expenses and revenue recognition

Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual principle in the period to which they relate.

Sales are recognized as at the date the services are rendered (with the exceptions disclosed below) or goods
are sold to customners and are stated net of discounts and value added tax.

Sales of postal services realized in cash through sales of postal stamps are recognized when the stamps are
sold. The Group does not have the necessary information that would allow it to record income from these
sales on an accrual basis in respect to the accounting periods in which customers actually use the purchased
postal stamps. The Group’s management believes that the costs of collecting such information relating to the
time allocation needed for these services realized through sales of postal stamps would exceed the benefits of
such information.

Revenues from agency services include the commission received for the services provided in the relevant
accounting period on an accrual basis.

15.3.2.2.17 Leases

The costs of assets held under both finance and operating leases are not capitalized as fixed assets. Lease
payments are expensed evenly over the life of the lease. Future Jease payments not yet due are disclosed
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in the notes to the consolidated financial statements but not recogmzed in the consolidated balance sheet. The
Group activates the respective value of leased asset in the period when the lease agreement is being
concluded and the purchase option is exercised. Lease payments made in advance are accrued over the lease
period.

15.3.2.2.18 Income tax

The income tax expense is calculated, using the valid tax rate, from the accounting profit increased or
decreased by the permanent or temporary non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income (e.g. non-
deducuible provisions and allowances, representation expenses, differences between accounting and tax
depreciation, etc.).

Corporate income tax is recognized in the balance sheet as a part of the item “Taxes and state subsidies
payable” if the tax lability exceeds the tax advances paid. Otherwise, the amount exceeding the tax liability
as a result of the advances paid is recorded as “Taxes - receivables from the state™.

The tax expense is disclosed in the consolidated profit and loss as tax from ordinary activities.

15.3.2.2.19 Deferred tax expense

Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability
in the consolidated balance sheet and its tax base. Deferred tax asset is recognized if it is probable that
sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which the asset can be utilized.

15.3.2.2.20 Related parties

The Group’s related parties are considered to be the following:

the State represented by the Company's founder, government institutions, state-owned enterprises
and companies, and other lega) entities, where the state has significant influence, while the nature
of the relationship is also decisive and not merely the legal form;

members of the Company’s statutory, supervisory bodies and management and related parties to
these members, including companies or institutions or businesses, where these members and
parties have controlling, proportional or significant influence.

Significant transactions and balances with related parties. related to other than the main postal services are
disclosed in subsection 15.3.2.22 — Related party transactions.

15.3.2.2.21 Subsequent events

The effects of events, which occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, are recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the case that
these events provide further evidence of conditions that existed as at the balance sheet date.

Where significant events occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, which are indicative of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance
sheet date, the effects of these events are disclosed, but are not themselves recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.
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15.3.2.3 Fixed Assets

15.3.2.3.1 Consolidation Difference

Movements in goodwill on consolidation can be analyzed as follows:
(In CZK millions) 2017
Opening balance as at 1 January 2017 7
Amontization of goodwil! 0
Closing balance s at 31 December 2017 7

Movements in negative goodwill on consolidation can be analyzed as foilows:
(In CZK millions) 2017
Opening balance as at | January 2017 (9)
Amortization of negative zoodwill |
Closing balance as at 31 December 2017 8)

15.3.2.3.2 Intangible Fixed Assets

Cost
(In CZK millions) Opening balance Additions ) Disposals *) Closing balance
Software 1.718 141 4) 1.853
Rovalties b] 1 0 3
Other intangible fixed assets 68 0 0 68
Intangible fixed assets in progress 105 9% (142) 61
Total as at 31 December 2017 1.893 240 (146) 1,987
Total as at 31 December 2016 2,122 210 (439) ** 1.893

*) Addoas and Disposals alsa include transfers of Intangble fixed assets In progress.

**) The balance contains the effect of spin - off of CZK {4) million

Accumulated amortization and net book value

Opening Ciosing
balance balance
of accumulated of accumulated

(In CZK millions) amor(ization Additions Disposals amortization Allowances  Net boak value
Soflware (1.461) (78) 3 (1.536) (18) 301
Royalties 1) (1) 0 2) 0 [
Other intangible fixed assets (65) ) 0 (67) 0 )
Intangible fixed assets in progress 0 0 0 (] 0 61
Total as at 31 December 2017 (1.527) (81) 3 (1.605) (18) 364
Total as at 3) December 2016 (1.765) (94) 332% (1.527) 20) 346

*Y The balance contains the effoct of spin = off of C2ZK 1 miltion.
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15.3.2.3.3 Tangible Fixed Assets

Cost

(In CZK millions) Opening balance Additions *) Disposals *) Closing balance

Land 868 1 (18) 851
Constructions 11,533 220 61) 11.692
Plant. machincry and equipment 5.220 189 (145) 5.264
Vehicles 1.601 13 (169) 1.545
Fumiture and fixtures 700 22 2n 701
Assets of less than CZK 40 (housang 256 135 0 391
Other movable assets 409 0 (42) 367
Arl works and collections Bl ( 0 S
Tangible fixed assets in progress 421 628 (676) 373
Total as at 31 December 20(7 21,012 1,309 (1.132) 21,189
Total as at 31 December 2016 20,996 1,32} (1.305)** 21,012

) Addltivns and Dlsposals also Indude transfers of tanglble fixed assets In progress. Disposals of wangible fixed assets in the course of construction also incliede depreciation of lost
investments

““} The halance cantans the eftect of <pin - off of CZK {109) mulhion

Accumulated depreciation, allowances and net book value

Opening Closing
balance of balance of
accumulated accumulated Net book

(In CZK millions) depreciation Additions Disposals  depreciation  Allowances value
Land 0 0 0 0 0 851
Conatructions (5.240) (279) 53 (5.466) (1%) 6.208
Plant. machinery and cquipment (4.140) (295) 148 (4.290) (13) 961
Vehicles (1.321) (87) 167 (1.241) 0 304
Fumiture and fixtures (566) (24) 20 (570) 0 131
Assets of less than CZK 40 thousand (28) (64) 0 (92) 0 299
Other movable assets (409) 0 42 (367) 0 0
Art works and collections 0 0 0 0 0 3
Tangible fixed assets in progress 0 0 0 0 (7) 366
Total as at 31 December 2017 (11.704) (749) 427 (12.026) (38) 9,125
Total as at 31 December 2016 (11.602) (715) 613" (11.704) (40) 9.268

*) The balance contains the effect of spin - off of CZK 79 million

Based on the stock-count performed, the Group adjusted the carrying value of the tangible fixed assets for
diminution in value through an allowance (see subsection 15.3.2.7 — Allowances).

[n 2017 and 2016, the Group did not receive any material fixed assets free of charge.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, besides the easement in favor of PCS — Praha Center s.r.0.
created in relation to the post office building at Jindfidska. Prague | based on an agreement dated 16 April
1997, which is in force until 31 March 2042, the Group has another 367 (359) easements, or similar rights to
tangible fixed assets (rights for sewage pipeline, water pipeline, power and gas connection, hot-water piping,
right of entry, access, crossing, riding, parking of a company car, pre-emptive right and the right of use)
mainly created in favor of the communal and municipal authorities,telecommunications infrastructure
providers , and electricity producers and distributors.

In 2017, the Group did not receive subsidies for investment purposes. In 2016, the Group received subsidies
for investment purposes of CZK 5 million.
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15.3.2.3.4 Long-term investments

Other long-term securities and investments as at 31 December 2017 comprise government bonds issued by
Ministry of Finance of the Czech Republic maturing in 2023, available-for-sale investments, valued at fair
value of CZK 217 million as at 31 December 2017 (as at 51 December 2016: CZK 219 million).

15.3.24 Inventory

The fair value of obsolete and slow-moving inventory is reduced to the selling price through the allowance
account (see subsection 15.3.2.7 — Allowances).

15.3.2.5 Receivables

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, receivables due after more than § years amounted to

CZK 1 million and CZK 2 million, respectively, and outstanding overdue receivables amounted to CZK 420
million and CZK 311 million, respectively. Qutstanding overdue receivables are not secured. The Group
wrote off irrecoverable recejvables of CZK 16 million and CZK 36 million in 20) 7 and 2016, respectively
due to cancellation of bankruptcy proceedings, unsatisfying the claims in bankruptey proceedings, etc.

Receivables from related parties are described in subsection 15.3.2.22 — Related party transactions. The
estimated receivables primarily comprise transactions related to international postal operations; balances of
these transactions as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 amounted to CZK 710 million and

CZK 933 million, respectively. Operating records on incoming mail not yet confirmed by individual postal
offices were recorded as estimated receivables with the double entry in Sales of own products and services,
based on operating statistics. As at 31 December 2017, the compensation of net costs of providing basic
postal services is included in estimated receivables as follows: a portion of CZK 1,300 million was
recognized in short-term receivables and CZK 500 million was recognized in Jong-term receivables; as at

31 December 2016, CZK 1,300 million were recognized in long-term receivables (see subsection 15.3.2.6. -
Net Costs of Universal Service.

15.3.2.6 Net Costs of Universal Service

The Company as a postal license holder, as defined by Section 2] paragraph 2 of the Postal Services Act, is
obliged to ensure the universal availability of basic services listed in Section 3 paragraph ! of the Postal
Services Act in the whole territory of the Czech Republic (ie. Postal services obligation). The Company is
obliged to fulfill the postal services obligation (Section 33 paragraph | point a) of the Postal Services Act),
in accordance with the basic quality requirements set out in Decree no. 464/2012 Coll., of 17 December
2012, establishing specifications for each basic service and basic quality requirements for their provisjon.

If, due to the obligation of providing basic services the postal license holder incurs a net costs representing
an unfair financial burden for the postal license holder these costs are reimbursed in such a way as stipulated
by the Postal Services Act. The CTO’s process of calculating the net cost of providing basic services is
further specified in Decree No. 466/2012 Coll. of 17 December 2012 on the procedure of the Czech
Telecommunication Office (CTO) when calculating the net cost of fulfilling obligations to provide basic
SErvICces.

According to a mechanism introduced by the Postal Services Act amendment, which entered into force on

1 January 2013, net costs representing an unfair financial burden should be funded through the account for
financing of net costs (the so called compensation fund) to which. under the Act, individual postal operators
should contribute according to their share on the postal services market. The Company should thus be
compensated for the net cost to the amount corresponding to the proportion of the market shares of other
entities operating in the postal services market. The determination of the group of mandatory contributors to
the compensation fund along with the amount of their contribution crucial for the fina) amount of
compensation for the years 2013 and 2014, which is the responsibility of CTO, have not been determined.
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Effective from | January 2016 in accordance with Act No. 319/2015, Coll. amending Act No. 29/2600 Coll.,
on Postal Services and amending certain other acts (Postal Services Act), as amended, and Act No. 77/1997
Coll., on State Enterprise, as amended, the change in the method of financing net costs for the periods
following the 2015 calendar year came into effect. The previous method of financing net costs through the
compensation fund was replaced by a payment from the state budget in the amount of the net cost for
providing basic services verified by CTO, however, no more than: for the year 2015 CZK 700 miliion; for
the year 2016 CZK 600 million; for 2017 and subsequent years CZK 500 million. Other net expenses are not
considered to be an unfair financial burden. The actual method of determining the net cost of basic services
has not been affected by the change in the law,

Following the adoption of Act No. 319/2015 Coll., a pre-notification process of the method for compensating
the net cost of providing basic services for the years 2015-2017 to the European Commission has been
initiated in Jine with EU law, The period under review has been subsequently extended to the years 2013 and
2014 as well. In July 2016, resulting from the preliminary investigation of the compensation fund regime

in the vears 2013 to 2014, the European Commission raised several observations, inter alia, questioning the
compliance of the arrangements for financing the net costs for both years through the compensation fund set
out in the Postal Services Act with EU law, and came up with the recommendation that the compensation
fund should be canceled.

On 12 October 2016, following the European Commission investigation, the Czech government
acknowledged in its resolution the impossibility of applying the Act on the postal services where it relates to
financing of net costs representing an unfair financial burden through the compensation fund and it asked the
Minister of Industry and Trade together with Minister of [nterior, 1st Deputy Prime Minister for the
Economy, and Minister of Finance to draft a proposal on how to prevent potential damage and minimize the
risks associated with the decision of not applying the provisions of the Postal Services Act on the years 2013
and 2014, on the basis of which the net cost of providing basic services representing an unfair financial
burden should be paid to the postal license holder, i.e. CP through a compensation fund.

Following the Government resolution of 22 March 2017, the Ministry of Industry and Trade prepared a drafi
amendment of the Postal Services Act. The draft addresses financing of the net costs incurred by the postal
license holder, i.e. CP in providing basic services for the years 2013 and 2014 due to abandoning the net cost
financing through the compensation fund and replacing the mechanism with a payment from the state
budget. According to the draft amendment, CP should be reimbursed the net costs totaling CZK 800 million
in three stages: CZK 200 million in 2018, CZK 300 million in 2019 and CZK 300 million in 2020.

On 19 February 2018, the European Commission concluded, based on an assessment of the prior notification
of the compensation payment for the provision of universal postal services (compensation for the net costs of
providing bastic services) for the period of 2013 to 2017 along with the supporting documents, that the
compensations granted to CP for the provision of universal postal services (compensation for the net costs of
providing basic services from the state budget) for the period 2013-2017 up to a maximum of CZK 2.6
billion constituted state aid compatible with the internal market under the Services of General Economic
Interest framework from 2012, which sets out the conditions to be met by the aid in order to comply with
Article 106 (2) of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union (TFEU).

As for the years 2013 and 2014, the Company’s management considers the above mentioned steps as an
increased security for the compensation payment. However, the actual payment of CZK 800 million still
depends on the successful completion of the legislative process as well as the adoption of the respective
amendment to the Postal Services Act. The proposal for amending legislation is currently in the inter-
departmental comment procedure as individual comments are being dealt with. At the same time, if there
was no change in Jegislation, the activation of the compensation fund would represent, in the light of the
foregoing, an unlawful public aid under EU law, and it is therefore de jure excluded. For these reasons, the
Company’s management decided not to recognize the entitlement for the years 2013 and 2014 in the books.
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As for the years 2015 and 2016, in prior years management decided to post estimated receivables in the
amount equal to the upper limit allowable by law, i.e. CZK 700 million and CZK 600 million for 2015 and
2016, respectively. In March 2018, CTO verified the amount of net costs for providing basic services
representing an unfair financial burden for 2015 in the amount of CZK 700 million. In March 2018, CTO
verified the amount of net costs for providing basic services representing an unfair financial burden for 2016
in the amount of CZK 600 million, thus confiming the correctness of the recognized amounts.

As a part of the profit and loss statement, the revenue was presented on a separate line I[1.3.1. Compensation
for net costs of the provision of basic postal services within other operating income. The compensation for
the net costs of the provision of basic postal services for the years 2015 and 2016 was presented within long-
term receivables under the line item C.J1.1.5.3. in the balance sheet. On 14 March 2018, CTO’s decision
defining amount of net costs representing unfair financial burden for years 2015 and 2016 become de jure
effective. With respect to the fact that in accordance with section 34d of Postal Services Actis CTO
responsible for providing net costs representing unfair financial burden in 30 days subsequent to the Jegally
binding decision, the asset was reclassified as at 31 December 2017 as short-terms and reported within short-
term receivables under the line item C.11.2.4.5.

As for 2017, the Company's management decided to post an estirated receivable in the amount equal to the
upper limit allowable by law, 1.e. CZK 500 million. As a part of the profit and loss statement, the revenue
was presented on a separate line I11.3.1. Compensation for net costs of the provision of basic postal services
within other operating income. With regard to the estimated payment date, the estimated receivable was
classified as long-term and is presented within long-term receivables under C.11.1.5.3.

15.3.2.7 Allowances

Allowances reflect a temporary decrease in the vajue of assets (disclosed in subsections 15.3.2.3 — Fixed
assets, 15.3.2.4 — [nventories and 15.3.2.5 — Reccivables).

Balunce as at Balance as at Balance ns 3t
Allowances against: 1 January 31 December 31 December
(in CZK millions) 2016 Additions  Reversal / use 2016 Additiony Reversal / use 2017
imangible fixed
assets 21 ] ) 20 0 Q) 1R
Tangible fixed asscts 66 0 (26) 40 0 2) 38
Inventory 60 M (2) 69 14 (10) 73
Receivables - other 138 64 (56) 146 24 (35) 135
Total tax non- I
deductible
allowances 285 76 (86) 275 38 (49) 264
Receivables — lepal 38 20 (35) 32 10 (10) 32
Totna) tax deductible
allowances 38 29 (35) 32 10 (10} 32
Toual 223 105 (121) 307 43 (59) 296

Legal allowances are created pursuant to the Act No. 593/1992 Coll., on Provisions, as amended and are
deductible for tax purposes; other allowances are not deductible for tax purposes.

15.3.2.8 Short-term Financial Assets and Cash

The main bank used by the Group is Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s., in which the Group has two cash-
pooling sets of accounts, a set of current accounts and a set of accounts with entrusted resources.

An overdraft epabling the Group to have a negative balance is agreed for the set of accounts with both the
Group’s own and entrusted resources (see subsection 15.3.2.14 — Bank loans and borrowings).
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As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group did not have short-term securities nor shares.

16.3.2.9 Equity
As at 3| December 2017 and 31 December 2016, share capital amounted to CZK 3,588 miltion.

Other capital funds mainly comprise contributions from the Group’s profit or gifts received.

The revaluation differences from the revaluation of assets and liabilities include the revaluation of available-
for-sale securities at fair value.

The reserve fund has been created gradually up to the level of 10% of share capital. Other funds from profit
include the cultural and socia! fund.

The Group is part of the whole of the government consolidation.

15.3.2.10 Minority Equity
Minority equity as at 31 December 2007 consists of the following (in CZK millions):

Undistributed

Other capital funds profit/(Joss) for Profit (toss) for the

(In CZK millions) Share eapital incl. reserve fund previous years period Total

Balance as at 1 January

2017 16 16 10 0 42

Movements between funds 0 0 0 0 0

Profit for the penod 0 0 0 (1) (1)

Balance as at 31 December

2017 16 16 t0 (1) 41
15.3.2.11 Provisions

Balance as at Balance as at Balance as ai
(Jn CZK millions) 1 January Reversal/ 31 December Reversal / 31 December
2016 Additions use 2016 Additions use 2017

Social and heahh insurance 116 202 (180) 138 78 122) 94

Accrued vaeation 29 136 (119 46 I Y 57

Provision for severance pay

incl. competition clauscs 48 51 (58) 41 68 (41) 68

Non-claimable component of

calarics 202 338 (274) 264 126 (266) 126

Other 233 94 (118) 212 Si (35) 228

Total tax non-deductible

provisions 628 821 (746) 703 334 (464) 73

Total 628 821 (746)* 703 334 (464) &573

*) The amount includes the effect of <pin-off towaling CZX (96) millian

The provision for social and health insurance is created mainly for contributions 10 the unpaid part of
contracted wages, profit-related bonuses, accrued vacation and other salary benefits.

A provision for the compensation for severance pay and competition clauses was created in connection with
the gradual reduction in the number of employees in subsequent years, which has been approved by the
Group’s management and then communicated to the employees and trade unions.
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Other provisions were primarily created to cover risks known as at 31 December 2017 and probable loss
from ongoing litigations and out-of-court disputes and related obligations.

The Group also created a provision for the non-claimable component of salaries which is composed of
expected extraordinary wage bonuses estimated by the Director General and an additional subjective
component of salaries including individual agreed salary bonuses.

156.3.2.12 Long-term liabilities

Long-term liabilities are represented by the deferred tax liability as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016, which is described in subsection 15.3.2,16 — Income tax and the amounts of trade payables, which
have maturity longer than one vear as at the balance sheet date, were CZK 10 million and CZK 16 million
as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, respectively. These are mainly part of liabilities concerning
retentions — given items are recognized on the line C.1.4 Trade payables.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group did not recognize liabilities that are due after
more than 5 years.

15.3.2.13 Current Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group had overdue current payables totaling CZK 19

million and CZK 15 million, respectively.

The Group had no current or long-term liabilities bearing a security or lien in favor of a creditor as at
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. respectively.

Liabilities 10 related parties are described in subsection 15,3.2.22 — Related party transactions.

Estimated payables particularly consist of costs associated with international postal operations, where
balances of transactions amounted to CZK 758 million and CZK [.027 million as at 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016, respectively. In addition, estimated payables included quantity discounts, uninvoiced
operating deliveries of services and energy, and estimated staff bonuses.

Payables in respect of social insurance and health insurance amounted to CZK 340 million and CZK 353
million as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, respectively. These payables comprise unpaid

wages for December 2017 and 2016, which were paid at the beginning of 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Group did not record any unpaid tax liabilities payable to the relevant tax authority as at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016.

15.3.2.14 Bank Loans and Borrowings

15.3.2.14.1 Denominated in CZK

Bank Terms/ Conditions Account Total limit 31/12/2017 31/12/2016
(In CZK millions) {In CZX millions} (in CZK
millions)
CSOB, ass. Global credit linc cffective Own resources
Eftective interest rate: 0.44% 100 0 0
CSOB, a.s.™ Global credit line effective Own resources
Efective interest rate: 0.53% 1,000 0 0
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CSOB. a.s. Global credit line effective Cnirusted
Effective interest rate: 0.23% resources 1,600 33 0

“) It can be drawn in foreign corrency in the cormesponding amound.

The overdraft on own funds account from Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s., is to offset short-term cash-
flow fluctuations and as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was not used.

A multi-purpose credit line from Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s., allows for overdrafts, short-term
loans on the financial market, documentary letters of credit and different types of guarantees. As at

31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the loan was not used. The multi-purpose credit line of CZK 600
million was terminated in 2/2017 and replaced by the multi-purpose credit line totaling CZK 1,000 million.

The overdraft on the entrusted resources account from Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s., serves to
optimize financial liguidijty to ensure the provision of Company’s services. This overdrafi is secured by
pledge on the Company’s receivables from Ceskoslovensk4 obchodni banka, a.s., created under a Contract
for the provisjon of services to Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s., by the Company. The Company used
CZK 33 million as at 31 December 2017; as at 31 December 2016, the overdraft from Ceskoslovenska
obchodni banka, 2.s., was not used.

The Group complies with all the terms and conditions of the loan agreements.

15.3.2.14.2 Vedené v EUR

31/12/2017 31/12/2016
Total limit
(In EUR (In EUR (In CZK (In EUR (la CZK
Bank Terms/ Conditions millions) millions) millions) millions) millions)
Global credit line effective
¢SOB.as. CURIBOR 3months
+0.1% p.a. ~ entrusted resources 5 1.4 35 1.2 34

The above-mentioned bank overdrafl granted is exclusively used for cash operations of the banking services
provided at selected post-oftice counters in EUR.

The Group complies with all the terms and conditions of the loan agreements.

15.3.2.15 Accruals and Deferred Income

Deferred income primarily includes prepaid postal fees for offsetting remote credit machines.

15.3.2.16 Income Tax

Analysis of the income tax expense is as follows;

(In CZK millions) 2017 2016
Current 1ax expense ( 64
Delerred (ax 7 31)
Adjustment of prior year lax vxpense based on final CIT retymn 4 (3)
To1al tax expense 12 30

The Company quantified tax due as follows:

(In CZK millions) 2017 2016
Profit before tax 110 209
Non-taxable revenues (20) (77)
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Difference between book and tax depreciation 107 12)
Tax non-deductible cxpenses (+). including changes in provisions and allowances (-) (104) 260
Of which:

= change in allowances an (10)

- change in provisions (130) 171

- other (e.g. previous prepaid expenscs., representation exgenses, shorages and losses) 37 99
Gifis 0 (2)
Deduction 10 support professional trining ) 0
Tax loss of subsidiarics 4 {
Taxable income 96 379
Deduction of tax loss from 2012, 2013 (28) (17)
Tax base 68 362
Income tax rate 19 % 19 %
Calculated income tax 13 69
Tax relief {persons with disability or partiat disability) (12) %)
Current Lax expense | 64
Income (ax cxpense from ordinary aclivities and 1otal 1 64

The Group calculated the deferred tax asset / (liability) using the 19% tax rate for both periods and quantified
as follows:

31/12/2017 31712/ 2016
Deferred tax Deferred tax
Base Deferred tax liabiliey Base Deferred tax liabilicy

(In CZK asset (In CZK (In CZK (In CZK axset (In CZK {In CZK
Deferred tax items millions) millions) millions) millions) millions) millions)
Difference between net book
value of fixed assets for
accounting and tax pumposes (2410) 0 (438) (2.509) 0 (477)
Allowances 264 S0 0 275 52 0
Other provigions §73 109 0 703 134 0
Other (cmporary ditferences 13 3 0 9 2 [A]
Total (1 560) 162 {458) (1,522) 188 (477)
Net deferred tax liability (296) (289)

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group did not recognize a deferred tax asset from its
subsidiary’s tax losses totaling CZK 10 million and CZK 16 million, respectively on the basis that its
recovery was uncertain.

15.3.2.17 Leases

The Group leases fixed assets, which are not recognized in the balance sheet accounts (see subsection
15.3.2.2.17 ~ Leases and subsection 15.3.2.18 ~ Commitments and Contingencies).

The assets leased by the Group in the form of operational leases amounted to CZK 314 million and CZK 294
million as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, respectively. The buildings leased by the Company
amounted to CZK 229 million and CZK 236 million as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,

respectively.
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any finance leases.

15.3.2.18 Commitments and Contingencies

The Group recognizes particularly stamps, road toll vignettes and lottery tickets, the nature of which is
recognized as valuables (these items are recognized below in nominal value) in its operational evidence as at
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. Furthermore, the Group recognized low-value assets in operating
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evidence and leased assets in off-balance sheet evidence (recognized in acquisition costs), which is not
recognized in the balance sheet:

(In CZK millions)

31/12/2017

31712/ 2016

Valuables incl. stamps and Jowery tickets

Road o}l vignettes

Leased asscts ~ operational lease

Securitics

Low-value tangible assets

Low-valuc inlangible assets

14,409
2955
1.692

40
227
63

15,491
1928
| 487

40

2379

64

The structure of the contracted future obligations from operating leases and rental of buildings is presented

in the table below (in CZK millions):

(In CZK millions)

31/12/2017

31/ 12/ 2016

Duc within 1 year

Due between 1 10 5 vears

Due after 5 vears

Total

39§
840
6l
1.299

374
657
72
1.103

Received and provided bank guarantees for the Group, which are drawn under the framework agreements,
on the provision of financial services, as at 31 December 2017 were as follows:

Entered in the Cummereral Register mumntained by the Municipal Court in Progue, Entry No. A7564

Type of Guaranior Amount

provided (In CZK

guarantee Creditor Subjeet Valid until millions)

Payment Ceskoslovenska obehodni Customs directorate for the Custom debt indefinite 4
banka, a.s, South Bohemian Region

Payment Ceskoslovenska obehodn; General Directorate for Electronic fee svstem 01/01/ 2019 9
banka. a.s. National Roads and Motorways

ol the Czech Republic

Pavmeni Ceskoslovenska obchodni Ministry of Interior NIS 178 31/ 12/2018 12
banka, a.».

Payment Ceskoslovenska obchodni State Fund for Transport Distribution and »ale of 16/ 03/ 2018 75
banka. a.s. Intrastructure (SFDI) vigneites lor the year 2016

Paymeny Ceskoslovensha obchodni State Fund for Trunsport Distribution and sale of 16/ 03/ 2019 390
banka. a.s. Infrastructure (SFDI) vignelles for the year 2017

Payment Ceskoslovenskd obchodni CONTERA Rental agreement 03/08/ 2018 1
banka, a.». Investment LI sr.o.

Payment Ceskostovenska obehodni - Prologis CR LX s.r.a Rental agreement 19/.017 2020 2
banka. a.s.

493
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Ceska posta
Typc of Amount
received (In CZK
guarantee Guarantor Debior Subject Valid until millions)
Payment Komereni banka, 2 s. SILBA-Elstay s.r.o. Action-DEPO Plzeis 72 11704/ 20018 1
Payment Komeréni banka, a.s. TRAWEKO 96 s.r.0. Action-DEPO Picrov 70 07/01/2018 |
Payment Ceskoslovenska obchodni VAIIOSTAV-SK, a.s. Action-DEPO Benesov 70 15/02/2018 l
banka, a.s.
Paymeat Ceskoslovensks obchodni Polabska stavebni CZ, s.r.o. Action-DEPO Ceska Lipa 70 18/ 04/ 2018 2
banka, a.s.
Payment Ceskosfovenskd obchodni PSG-Intemational a.s. Action-dislocation of the post 28/ 08/ 2018 1
banka. a.s. office Praha 50 (0 SPU
Malesice
Payment Ceska spotitcina, a.s. Synet £.1.0. Action - DEPO Kromgfiz 14/ 08/ 2018 1
Payment Komereni banka, a.s. SAN-JV sro. Action-DEPO Sumperk 70 03/ 06/2018 ]
Payment UniCredi( Bank, a.s, Kappenberger -+ Braun. Action - DEPO Jihlava 70 05/10/2018 |
Elekro-Technik spol s. r.o.
Payment Komertni banka. as. ABC Chomutov spol. s .0, Action - SPU Ulsti nad 31/08/2018 i
Labem
Payment( Ceskoslovenska obchodni IMOS Bmo, a.s. Action - insulation; Pragae 3 31712/ 20tR 4
banka. a.s. Oldanska
Payment Raitfeisenbank. a.s. SKD Pramslav-stavby, a.s. Action - $PU Usti - 03/02/2M9 4
complcvon
Poyment UniCreditBank. 3. s. PSG Iniemational a.s. Action - reconstruction 03/06/2019 )
SPU+DEPO Ostrava 71
Payment Oberbank AG EDIKT. a. s. Action - SPU Ostrava+DEPO  31/07/ 2019 S
Ostrava 71 - completion and
reconstruction
Pavment Komercni banka ZIPP Bmo, s.r.o. Aclion - reconstruction of 15/ 0472021 2
post otfice Brmo 100
Payment ¢soB OHL ZS. a.s. Action - SPU Ceské 2709/ 2021 §
Budéjovice - new building
31

15.3.2.19 Contingent Liabilities

The management of the Group is not aware of any other significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December

2017.

15.3.2.20 Revenues and Other Operating Income

Breakdown of revenues and other operating income from the Group’s activities:

2017 o 2016
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
{In CZK (s CZK {In CZX (In CZK (In CZK (In CZK
millions) millions) millions) millions) millions) millions)
Revenue from postal operations 12,111 1,837 13.948 12284 1.794 14,078
Re¢venuc from provision of
intermediary services 2.577 0 2.377 2,561 0 2,561
Printing (postal stamps. envelopes,
valuables) 32 12 44 6 14 20
Revenue from the commumcation
imfrastructure 0 0 0 336 0 336
Revenue from electronic services 362 0 362 518 0 518
Revenues from data mailboxes 513 0 513
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517 0 517

Revenue from the sale of goods 340 0 340 257 0 257
Total revenues 15939 1.849 17,788 16475 1.808 18.283
Other operaling income 1.117 0 1117 1,092 0 1.092
Total other operating income 1.117 0 1,117 1.092 0 1.092
Total revenues and other operating

income 17,056 1,849 18,905 17,567 (.808 19,375

In 2017, the Group did not receive subsidies for operating purposes; in 2016, the Group received subsidies

for operating purposes in the amount of CZK 3 million.

15.3.2.21 Employees
Breakdown of Group’s staft costs is as follows:

2017

2056

Of which:
Group's

management and

Of which:
Group's

management and

Total personncl Dircctor General Total personnel Director Genernl
Average adjusted number of employees 29,750 39 30.096 36
Wages and salaries (in CZK millions) 9,347 88 9,031 80
Social sccurity and health insurance (In CZK
millions) 3.102 17 3,004 17
Sacial costs (in CZK millions) 340 0 350 0
Total staff costs 12,789 105 12385 97

Wages and salaries of the Group's management and Supervisory Board also include severance pay and anti-

competitive clause.

15.3.2.22 Related Party Transactions

Apart from the bonuses disclosed in subsection 15.3.2.21 — Employees, in 2017 members and former
members of the Group’s statutory and supervisory bodies and the Group’s management did not receive any
loans, guarantees, advance payments or other benefits besides the collective agreement, they did however
have access to company cars that are made available by management for both business and private purposes.

During the year, the Group executed several transactions with related parties within its ordinary business
activities. The transactions realized in 2017 and 2016 along with the related receivables from and liabilities

to related parties are as follows:

Revenues (In CZK Expenses (In CZK Receivables  Liabilities (fn CZK

2017 millions) millions) (In CZK millions) millions)
Cvech Television and Radio 235 1 10 13
Government ministrics 689 0 RN 15
Czech Social Security Administration 424 2,221 0 2,002
Municipat and local authoritics 347 108 14 288
CD Cargo ! 71 0 4
Charles University in Prague 9 0 0 2
Water and sewage systems Hodonin 2 0 0 2
National Agency for Communications I3 4 3 1

and Information Technology

Total 1,720 2408 82 2,327
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Revenues (In CZK Expenses (In CZK Receivables  Liabilities (In CZK

2016 millions) milltons) (In CZK millions) millions)
Czech Television and Radio 238 0 0 10
Govemnment ministrics 1.058 22 S3 19
Czech Social Security Administration 453 2155 0 2073
Municipal and local authoritics 338 76 7 230
CD Cargo 0 70 ) 3
Charles University in Prague 9 0 0 2
Ceské drghy 6 3 f }
Water and sewage systems Hodonin 2 0 0 2
Nafional Agency for Communications

and Information Technology s 2 3 0
Total 2,109 2,328 64 2.342

15.3.2.23 Fees Paid and Payable to the Audit Company

The fees paid to audit companies for the statutory audit of the financial statements, including the
consolidated financial statements audit, totaled CZK 2 million and CZK 3 million, respectively in 2017 and

2016.

15.3.2.24 Entrusted Resources

The entrusted resources analysis as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is as follows:

(In CZK millions) 317122017 31/ 12/ 2016
ASSETS

Short-term receivables 140 133
Cash 3.399 3,207
Cash at hank 337 607
Total assets 3.876 3,947

(In CZK millions)

A/12/2017

31/12/2016

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Curren( liabiiities 3.408 3913
Short-lerm bank loans 68 34
3.876 1,947

Total liabilities and equity

Short-term recejvables consist primarily of short-term receivables for agency services (e.g. card transactions,
cheque transactions, etc.) provided to CSOB, a.s.

At the end of 2017 and 2016, the Group received advance payments in the amount of CZK 1,600 million and
CZK 1,695 million, respectively for 2017 and 2016 pension payments from the Czech Social Security

Administration.

All these habilities in respect of entrusted resources were within the maturity period.

15.3.2.25 Cash-flow Statement

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group did not consider the used overdraft facilities

as cash equivalents for the purpose of preparing the consolidated cash-flow statement (see subsection
15.3.2.14 — Bank loans and overdrafis).

Cash and cash equivalents disclosed in the consolidated cash-flow statement can be analyzed as follows:
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(In CZK millions) 31/12/2017 31/12/2016
Cash on hand 4368 4284
Cash at bank 16 2,094
Cash equivalents from shon-term sccuritics and investments 0 30
Cash and cash equivalents 5284 6,428

15.3.2.26 Subsequent events

The Company will calculate net costs for the provision of basjc services for the accounting period 2017 and
will ask CTO for the reimbursement of such costs that represent unfair financial burden for the Company as
a postal license holder. The deadline for submission is 31 August 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, Marek Jénsky quit the position of the Chief Director of Finance Division.

On | January 2018, Lukas Svoboda was appointed the Chief Director of Finance Division.

On 30 January 2018, Pavel Chyla was appointed the Deputy Director General.

On 28 February 2018, Martin Elkan was recalled from the Director General position.

Effective from | March 2018, Vit Bukvic was entrusted with the management of Ceska podta, s.p., based on
the Resolution of DG 16/2018.

On 2 March 2018, Jiti Linert was appointed the Chief Director of Postal Operations and Logistics Division.

On 5 March 2018, Ceska posta received a decision on determining the net costs of providing basic services
for 2015 and 2016 from CTO — see subsection 15.3.2.6 — Net Costs of Universal Service for more details.

No other material events have occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of preparation of the

consolidated financial statements that would have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements
for the 2017 accounting period.

23 March 2018

Ing. Vit Bukvic, charged with managing Cesk4 posta, s.p.
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